
Page 1 of 2  
Prepared by: Mary Mackenzie 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Wednesday, January 17, 2024 5:00 PM to 7:30 PM 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/613973795 
Meeting ID: 613 973 795  

REGULAR SESSION DRAFT AGENDA 

5:00 1. CLOSED SESSION
6:15 2. Adjourn Closed Session
6:15 3. Call to Order/Establish Quorum
6:15 4. Agenda Review (5 min)
6:20 5. Announcements/Program Updates (10 min)
6:30 6. *CONSENT AGENDA – Action Items (5 min)

*In approving the consent agenda, the Board is approving recommendations within each
committee’s minutes listed below.
6.1 Draft Minutes of the November 15, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting
6.2 Draft Minutes of the December 13, 2023 Governance Committee Meeting
6.3 Draft Minutes of the January 10, 2024 Governance Committee Meeting
6.4 Draft Minutes of the December 13, 2023 Audit & Finance Committee Meeting
6.5 Draft Minutes of the January 10, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting
6.6 Draft Minutes of the January 11, 2023 Advocacy Committee Meeting
6.7 Draft Minutes of the December 13, 2023 Development Committee Meeting
6.8 Draft Minutes of the January 10, 2024 Development Committee Meeting
6.9 Resolution: Urban and Community Forestry Grant Program- Email Vote
6.10 Resolution: Approving Participation in the Community Air Grants Program- Email Vote
6.11 Approval of Agency Board Resolution MOW Bay Fed

6:35  7. Receive comments from members of the public on “Items not on the Agenda”
(5 min) 

6:40 8. BOD Chair Report – Jack Jacobson (5 min)
6:45 9. CEO Report – Ray Cancino (20 min)

a) WIC Program Presentation
b) CACFP Program Presentation

7:05 10. Development Report–Tony Nunez/ Anna Vaage (10 min)
7:15 11. Finance Committee Update – Doug Underhill (10 min)
7:25 12. Newspaper Articles

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/613973795


Page 2 of 2  
Prepared by: Mary Mackenzie 

a) Top 10 ways to volunteer and help fight hunger this November in Santa Cruz County –
Lookout Santa Cruz, November 2023 

b) Writers to host benefit for Pajaro flood survivors – Santa Cruz Sentinel, November 2023
c) Elderday Grand Opening: New Watsonville Center Welcomes Volunteers – Aptos Times,

November 2023 
d) Community Bridges steps in to help victims of a mass eviction in Pajaro – KSBW,

November 2023 
e) Transforming Santa Cruz County’s transportation landscape: Lift Line’s mission to bridge

gaps – Lookout Santa Cruz, November 2023
f) Community Bridges assists Pajaro families facing eviction – Santa Cruz Sentinel,

November 2023 
g) Familias en Pájaro pasan los últimos días en labores de mudanza antes de cumplir con

orden de desalojo – Telemundo, November 2023
h) Decenas de familias desalojadas en la comunidad de Pájaro en el condado Monterey –

Telemundo 48, November 2023 
i) Reading For Flood Victims – Good Times, November 2023
j) Dozens of Pajaro residents facing eviction during the holiday season organize and

fundraise – Monterey County Weekly, November 2023
k) Community Bridges raises more than $60K for Pajaro families facing evictions – Santa

Cruz Sentinel, November 2023 
l) Empowering 22,000 vulnerable residents: Help deliver essential services to older adults,

children & families – Lookout Santa Cruz, November 2023
m) Evictions loom for 14 Pajaro families  - The Pajaronian, December 2023
n) Writers raise funds, encourage advocacy for Pajaro flood victims – Santa Cruz Sentinel,

December 2023 
o) Monterey County flood response bolstered – Monterey Herald, December 2023

7:25 13. Items for Next Agenda (5 min) 
7:30 14. Adjourn Regular Meeting 

Next Meeting: Wednesday, February 21, 2024, 5 pm - 7:30 pm, via Zoom. 

2

https://lookout.co/santacruz/partners/marketing/story/2023-11-03/top-10-ways-to-volunteer-and-help-fight-hunger-this-november-in-santa-cruz-county
https://www.santacruzsentinel.com/2023/11/06/writers-to-host-benefit-for-pajaro-flood-survivors/
https://tpgonlinedaily.com/elderday-grand-opening/
https://www.ksbw.com/article/pajaro-community-bridges-steps-in-to-help-victims-of-a-mass-eviction-in-pajaro/45828899
https://lookout.co/santacruz/partners/marketing/story/2023-11-14/unlocking-hope-elderday-adult-day-health-cares-grand-opening-marks-a-milestone-in-santa-cruz-county
https://lookout.co/santacruz/partners/marketing/story/2023-11-14/unlocking-hope-elderday-adult-day-health-cares-grand-opening-marks-a-milestone-in-santa-cruz-county
https://www.santacruzsentinel.com/2023/11/16/community-bridges-assists-pajaro-families-facing-eviction/
https://kion546.com/t23/2023/11/20/familias-en-pajaro-pasan-los-ultimos-dias-en-labores-de-mudanza-antes-de-cumplir-con-orden-de-desalojo/
https://kion546.com/t23/2023/11/20/familias-en-pajaro-pasan-los-ultimos-dias-en-labores-de-mudanza-antes-de-cumplir-con-orden-de-desalojo/
https://www.telemundoareadelabahia.com/noticias/local/familias-desalojadas-comunidad-pajaro-condado-monterey/2355726/
https://www.goodtimes.sc/pajaro-rising-fundraiser-11-30-2023-ucsc/
https://www.montereycountyweekly.com/news/local_news/dozens-of-pajaro-residents-facing-eviction-during-the-holiday-season-organize-and-fundraise/article_085d65be-8998-11ee-b854-c7c5e875d489.html
https://www.montereycountyweekly.com/news/local_news/dozens-of-pajaro-residents-facing-eviction-during-the-holiday-season-organize-and-fundraise/article_085d65be-8998-11ee-b854-c7c5e875d489.html
https://www.santacruzsentinel.com/2023/11/24/community-bridges-raises-more-than-60k-for-pajaro-families-facing-evictions/
https://lookout.co/your-support-brings-vital-services-to-22-000-santa-cruz-countys-older-displaced-and-at-risk-residents/
https://lookout.co/your-support-brings-vital-services-to-22-000-santa-cruz-countys-older-displaced-and-at-risk-residents/
https://pajaronian.com/evictions-loom-for-14-pajaro-families/
https://www.santacruzsentinel.com/2023/12/01/writers-raise-funds-encourage-advocacy-for-pajaro-flood-victims/
https://www.montereyherald.com/2023/12/06/monterey-county-flood-response-bolstered/


Page 1 of 3  
Prepared by: Mary Mackenzie 

HYBRID BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Wednesday, November 15, 2023, 5:00 PM to 7:30 PM 

Big Bird Room (18 W Lake Ave) OR 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/613973795, Meeting ID: 613 973 795 

REGULAR SESSION DRAFT MINUTES 

Present: Jack Jacobson, Tony Nunez, Michele Miller, Ray Cancino, Mary McMillan, Michael Babich, 
Silvia Morales, Aloke Mukherjee, Darren Daley, Steph Ruhl, Lisa Hindman Holbert, Mayra Melendrez, 
Dana Wagner 
Minutes: Mary Mackenzie  

5:00 1. CLOSED SESSION
6:00 2. Adjourn Closed Session
6:00 3. Call to Order/Establish Quorum
6:00 4. Agenda Review (5 min)
6:25 5. Announcements/Program Updates (10 min)
6:25 6. *CONSENT AGENDA – Action Items (5 min)

*In approving the consent agenda, the Board is approving recommendations within each
committee’s minutes listed below.
6.1 Draft Minutes of the September 20, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting
6.2 Draft Minutes of the October 11, 2023 Governance Committee Meeting
6.4 Draft Minutes of the October 11, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting
6.7 Draft Minutes of the October 11, 2023 Development Committee Meeting
6.8 Draft Minutes of the November 8, 2023 Development Committee Meeting
6.9 Resolution: CDE Continued Funding Application - Email Vote
6.10 Resolution: CDSS Daycare Expansion Grant - Email Vote
6.11 Resolution: Whale Tail Grant (for FRCs) – Email Vote
6.11 Approval of Agency Board Resolution EED Highland Park
Motion to approve consent agenda as written. Motion moved by Mary/Michael, MSP.

6:20   7. Receive comments from members of the public on “Items not on the Agenda” 
(5 min) 

6:27 8. BOD Chair Report – Jack Jacobson (5 min) 
6:28 9. CEO Report – Ray Cancino (30 min) 

a) Program Presentation – FRCs

3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/613973795


 
Page 2 of 3  

Prepared by: Mary Mackenzie 
 

See program presentation. Thank you FRC PD, she’s extremely busy. What do you want to 
feature on the FRC Newsletter? Also, PD is willing to pick up a call from CEO.  
Would you be excited about Hopes Closet, not really, but it would fit within the FRCs. 
There are probably FRC team members that would be excited.  

b) Agency Phishing Attack 
The agency received a very aggressive attack which resulted in email access with sensitive 
information (fiscal). It was a significant breach. The agency is enacting MFA 
authentication, 1 year credit monitoring, spam filter etc., and monitoring bad actors. 
Employee records, and health information, CB wasn’t able to identify that someone 
downloaded information.  

7:00 10. Development Report–Tony Nunez/ Anna Vaage (10 min)  
Development Committee meets monthly tracking month over month. The donations the 
agency is receiving for flood relief for this year, they’re an equal amount, as of this fiscal year, 
the office is receiving donations that are supporting Pajaro Center. 5% above where the 
agency was last year. Would like to get to 5% above where we were last year in donations. 
Want to grow by $50k this year. CB could start this fiscal year as here’s what CB is doing, to 
here’s what the FRCs do. At the start of the calendar year, we’re going to focus on tax services 
the FRCs provide. Monterey County Gives and Pajaro Event.  
Development is bringing back the wall calendar, get more donations when CB mails it than 
when it doesn’t.  CB does have a couple months left if any small businesses want to get a 
spot. CB do several mailers 6-8 per year. Fall mailer is coming from CB. The FRC Mailer is 
going out Mother’s day and Father’s day.  
First one of the year is the annual report that goes out. Need more donor date, CEO took a 
potential donor out to Lilian’s and got $10k check.  
Putting together the donor acknowledgement and engagement plan. The thing CB hasn’t 
done is come up with acknowledgment and engagement for corporate, etc.  

7:01 12. Finance Committee Update – Doug Underhill (15 min)  
 We are one quarter into the new fiscal year, -$334k, vs. budget of -$364k.  

WIC: Finished up their Federal fiscal year spending 99.22% of contract. WIC has started to 
generate some ECM revenues. 
EED: Currently being audited.  Program is nearly spending out entire contract 98%.  State has 
ARPA money to disburse, so EED got a temporary rate increase, $157k, and then another 
$300k, restricted to allowable CSPP expenses, but with no expiration date. EED PD has been 
building HP private pay site.  
ELD: Continued challenges for Elderday. ELD made the move to the new location, no drop in 
ADA, and needs to build from that. 
LL: Has a new $300k contract for transportation for unhoused to the armory, $170k in 
personnel and will be doing wage increases. 
FRCs: Aggregate running is in positive, one site as a gain one as a loss, funds can be moved 
back and forth from each other, need more staffing, move $200k forward.  
CACFP: Daycare homes count has been solid and increasing. They do drop some seasonally. 
$37k gain state revenues, reimbursement rates continue to go up. 
Admin and Dev: are running pretty solid, headed towards positive. 

4



 
Page 3 of 3  

Prepared by: Mary Mackenzie 
 

LOCC and Endowments: pressured – markets were volatile last quarter.  
CBHQ: Revenues equaling expenses year to date. 
501 Main: A few more expenses. Took out the remaining loans.  
We will need an audit committee put together in about two weeks. 

7:25 13. Newspaper Articles 
a) Decades of dedication: Lisa Berkowitz’s lifelong commitment to Meals on Wheels – Lookout 

Santa Cruz, September 2023 
b) Slow recovery continues after Pajaro flood – Santa Cruz Local, September 2023 
c) Six months after levee breach, Pajaro residents face difficult road ahead – KAZU, 

September 2023 
d) Community Bridges readies for Lift Line service expansion – Santa Cruz Sentinel, 

September 2023 
e) Community Bridges celebrates opening of new Elderday center – Santa Cruz Sentinel, 

October 2023 
f) Mountain Affair to honor longtime food pantry volunteer – Press Banner, October 2023 
g) Elderday unveils its new senior day center – The Pajaronian, October 2023 
h) Pajaro Flood Victims Still Rebuilding – Good Times, October 2023 
i) Five UC Santa Cruz projects awarded grant funding to tackle climate change challenges – 

Lookout Santa Cruz, October 2023 
j) 5 Amazing Volunteer Organizations In Watsonville – Patch, October 2023 
k) Medi-Cal rules prompt enrollment drop in Santa Cruz County – Santa Cruz Local, October 

2023 
7:25 14. Items for Next Agenda (5 min) 
 Needs to put Hopes Closet on FC committee. – Jack 
7:30 15. Adjourn Regular Meeting 
 

Next Meeting: Wednesday, January 17, 2023, 5 pm - 7:30 pm, via Zoom. 
  

5

https://lookout.co/santacruz/partners/marketing/story/2023-09-18/decades-of-dedication-lisa-berkowitzs-lifelong-commitment-to-meals-on-wheels
https://santacruzlocal.org/2023/09/13/slow-recovery-continues-after-pajaro-flood/
https://www.kazu.org/kazu-news/2023-09-11/six-months-after-levee-breach-pajaro-residents-face-difficult-road-ahead
https://www.santacruzsentinel.com/2023/09/05/community-bridges-readies-for-lift-line-service-expansion/
https://www.santacruzsentinel.com/2023/10/13/community-bridges-celebrates-opening-of-new-elderday-center/
https://pressbanner.com/mountain-affair-to-honor-longtime-food-pantry-volunteer/
https://pajaronian.com/elderday-unveils-its-new-senior-day-center/
https://www.goodtimes.sc/pajaro-flood-victims-still-rebuilding/
https://lookout.co/santacruz/partners/marketing/story/2023-10-11/five-uc-santa-cruz-projects-awarded-grant-funding-to-tackle-climate-change-challenges
https://patch.com/california/watsonville/5-amazing-volunteer-organizations-watsonville
https://santacruzlocal.org/2023/10/04/medi-cal-rules-prompt-enrollment-drop-in-santa-cruz-county/


Prepared by Mary Mackenzie 

Governance Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, December 13, 2023, 6-7 pm 

Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/326410777 
Meeting ID: 326 410 777 

Present: Mary McMillan, Ray Cancino, Michael Babich, Ryan Friedrich, Jack Jacobson, Sara 
Seigel, Steph Ruhl, Michele Miller, Doug Underhill 
Minutes: Mary Mackenzie 

REGULAR SESSION 
DRAFT MINUTES 

6:00 1. Meeting to order/Establish Quorum
6:00 2. Closed Session

See closed session minutes 
6:30 3. Consent Agenda (3 min)

a) 10/11/23 Regular Session Draft Minutes
Motion to accept minutes as written. Motion moved by Mary/Michael,
MSP.

6:30 4. Agenda Review (2 min)
Farm to Fork – Possible Locations: 
Going to the Loft at which the back room opened for study hall. It was a beautiful 
building which is owned by Twin Lakes Church. It looks like a beautiful space. Can 
reach out to the pastor.  

6:32 5. Advocacy Committee (10 min) 
Wanted to make sure that the board was aware that we want to have regular meetings. 
Mary McMillan will be the chair. Need to look at what will be on the March and 
November ballot: support for sales tax for unincorporated areas. Incorporation of 
PVHD. Need active engagement, conversation about how much time and effort to put 
in. No controversy. The committee needs another board member. Had a cursory over 
coffee. Copy of elevator speech. Time is of the essence. Election is going to be over 
before we know it. We need to take a position by second week of January. We need to 
have a meeting. The goal is to get any endorsement out before ballots hit the doors.  

   6:36     6. Board Recruitment (15 min) 
There are a couple of options – potential for extensions/recruitment. CB/Board 
Member should meet with a potential board member who is a colleague of Steve 
McKay. Need to keep the BOD around 12 to 15 board members ideally. If there are any 

6

https://zoom.us/j/326410777


Prepared by Mary Mackenzie 

people, please provide names.  
   6:39 7. Items for next GC Agenda/BOD Agenda (5 min) 

None 
6:39 8. Adjourn 

Next Meeting: January 10, 2023, 6-7 pm 
Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/326410777, 

or call +1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 326 410 777 

7

https://zoom.us/j/326410777


Prepared by Mary Mackenzie 

Governance Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, January 10, 2024, 6-7 pm 
Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/326410777 

Meeting ID: 326 410 777 

Present: Silvia Morales, Steph Ruhl, Ryan Friedrich, Ray Cancino, Michele Miller, Sara 
Seigel, Aloke Mukherjee 
Minutes: Mary Mackenzie 

REGULAR SESSION 
DRAFT MINUTES 

6:02 1. Meeting to order/Establish Quorum 
6:02 2. Closed Session 

See closed session minutes 
6:18 3. Consent Agenda (3 min) 

a) 12/13/23 Regular Session Draft Minutes
Motion to approve consent agenda as written. Motion moved by
Silvia/Ryan, MSP.

6:18 4. Agenda Review (2 min) 
6:19 5. Board Roster – Michael Babich (5 min) 

Michael Babich has submitted his resignation, extended his thanks for being on the 
Board. CB will thank him and sending a gift on behalf of the agency. 
There is also one other person that we are hoping to   

   6:40      6. LOSD – Lease and Next Steps (15 min) 
CB has signed the lease with LOSD, move forward with reestablishing MOW’s location, 
and this also allows us to have LOSC to be a dining site. This contract also allows us to 
have a conversation about buying the property. Upon purchase of the property, this 
would terminate MOW’s lease upon sale or swap.  

   6:55 7. Items for next GC Agenda/BOD Agenda (5 min) 
7:00 8. Adjourn 

8

https://zoom.us/j/326410777


Prepared by Mary Mackenzie 
 

 

 
 
 

Next Meeting: February 14, 2024, 6-7 pm 
Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/326410777, 

or call +1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 326 410 777 

 

9

https://zoom.us/j/326410777


Audit/FInance Committee Meeting  
Wednesday, December 13, 2023, 5-6 pm 

Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/326410777  
Meeting ID: 326 410 777 

Present: Mary McMillan, Doug Underhill, Jack Jacobson, Steph Ruhl, Michael Babich, Ryan 
Friedrich, Ray Cancino, Sara Seigel  
Audit Committee: Steph Ruhl, Sara Seigel, Ryan Friedrich 

Minutes: Mary Mackenzie 

Guest: Peter Mersino, Auditor 

Audit Committee – Audit Review: 

[Introductions to Peter] 

The auditor sends a letter to governance as well as management with regard to the outcome 
of the audit. It’s a clean letter, but It’s a requirement. The letter would go to governance and 
the board.  

Page 1: Independent auditor’s report. It’s a clean opinion and it’s unmodified.  
Page 2: Contains more of the report, including supplemental information for CDE.  
Page 3: Explains governing audit standards. 
Page 4: Contains the statement of financial position: cash and cash equivalents decreased 
investments $2.6M, this is in part due to property and equipment purchases for the year 
including: child development equipment, vehicles, and building improvements.  Assets: 
$22.6M. 
Reserve fund was used to pay off the LL owner carry note: $400k. 
CB has $8M in liabilities. 
Net assets w/o restrictions $13M, net assets w/restriction $400k 
Overall: 
21% increase revenue 
16% increase expenses 
13% admin rate 
$1.3 M net increase contributions for the year 

10

https://zoom.us/j/326410777


There was an increase in net assets of $4M which was added to the $9M, $13M for total net 
assets. 
Page 6: Shows program services 
Page 7: Contains supporting services, including management in general, salaries and benefits, 
and pass through for day care providers. 
Page 8: Statement of Cashflows: change in accounts. Ending cash $2.7M. 
Pages 9-11: Accounting principles applied as well as accounting policies.  
Page 12: Amount in excess of FDIC limits, investments 
Page 13: Property and equipment - clarification: equipment recorded at purchase cost.  
Note 7: Contribution to 401k plan $236k (5%) 
Note 8: vacation time payout 
Note 10: Notes payable 
Page 15: There are no contingencies on operating assets. 
Note 12: Shows liquid assets to pay for next year. 
Page 16: Includes various reports that are required with a single audit, there were no 
instances of non-compliance. 
Page 18: Another report for single audit act for compliance with major programs. – WIC and 
Calfresh outreach. They rotate every year. CB complied with all aspects of compliance. 
Page 20: Schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards. 
Page 21: Federal 
Page 22: State 
Page 25: This is a required summary of the audit. 
CB is determined to be a low-risk audit, and has filed its audit timely for last two years and 
has had no major findings. 
Pages 41-42 Measure D 
Pages 43-44 TDA report 
 
It is a clean audit and that’s really the result of the staff at CB knowing what they’re doing and 
having experience.  
 
Want to thank CFO and the whole fiscal team! Do you want to highlight any trends? Drop in 
cash and increase in investments, which reflects the money that CB put into T-Bills.  
As far as ELD, $2.1M in grant fundings, to make up significant portion of gain. Peter referenced 
a lot of funding received for spending next year, Fiscal keeps track of what is going on with 
that. There are two categories of funding. Conditional funding has higher barriers, if funding 
isn’t used in certain ways it can be recalled an is not realized when received and is deferred 
when unspent. Unconditional funding is recognized as revenue the day we receive it. It will 
show up as a gain but is not yet spent. We have a little over a million dollars to be spent in this 
fiscal year or thereafter. CB has disaster donations that came in late in the year. $950k in 
disaster donations that the FRCs will be spending out.  
 

11



Does a tax exempt organization have to make a report to the Federal government? Yes 990. 
Lots of important information, including all of the numbers in the first 20 pages of the audits.  
 
Motion to approve FY 22/23 single audit with the direction to make any minor 
administrative changes by staff. Motion moved by Ryan/Steph, MSP.  
 
Finance Committee: 
1. Hope’s Closet – Financial Aspect 
CB has initially put together what it would cost to operate Hopes Closet, including the 
addition of a volunteer coordinator. CB would need a lot of volunteers to run it. Based on ’22 
store sales, revenues, CB estimates a $100k loss, but after revenues, it would be -$34k. We 
would have $255k in reserves with hopes closet. It would cost $380k in personnel and 
operating expenses – not a huge program. Financially – this occupancy they’re paying, the 
lease is going to come up, they’re going to need a new home. Where should this program live? 
There are some advantages of being in South County, trucks of donations that could be 
dropped off. The agency is discussing the decision to incorporate Hopes Closet, is there a way 
to assist them without bringing them under our umbrella? Caroline’s is the other one, 
however it is also a volunteer run organization as well. They have reached out to other 
organizations. These are ’22 store sales, we’re projecting 23/24 expenses vs. that. Is there a 
way in which to have a volunteer coordinator that could be directed at other programs in 
addition to their work with Hopes Closet? If volunteer coordinator could be integrated to 
MOW as well. Yes, it would be possible, for example, if they are no longer 50% at Hope’s 
Closet, but rather 25%. Which program will manage it? That’s the big question – FRC PD and 
WIC PD have been supportive of the idea. How do we provide the necessary staffing?  
 
The Board was a sent a questionnaire, what were the results. [Results shared with the Board] 
What’s the most important program that you’d like to add – direct assistance? Maybe top 5. 
One issue that CB might run into is that someone that applied for case management position 
isn’t going to want to work at a retail store.  
 
This is a straw poll – there’s got to be a bridge, without absorbing them. Can we help find 
another buyer? Do we have relationships with someone else that might be interested? If 
there’s $350k in expenses, it’s bringing additional dollars into admin. Could the WIC office 
move from Soquel into this location? To reduce the size of Hopes Closet. What if you 
considered taking them on for one year, with someone from their board for a year. Would 
want them to stay on the board for at least a 3-year term.  What’s left on their lease? March 
2024.  
 
Our current staff is overstretched, however at the same time Hopes Closet has a function that 
aligns with our values. They shouldn’t go away just because the other organization ran out of 
inertia. Want to make sure that there’s an operational plan. What are the metrics, goals, time 
frame. Game plan.  

12



Finance Committee 
Wednesday, January 10, 2024, 5:00-6:00 PM 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/326410777 
Zoom Meeting ID: 326-410-777 

Santa Cruz County, CA 

Present: Ray Cancino, Mary McMillan, Doug Underhill, Ryan Friedrich, Steph Ruhl, 
Minutes: Mary Mackenzie 

REGULAR SESSION 
DRAFT MINUTES 

5:00 Agenda Review 
5:03 CFO Report – Doug Underhill 

a) Department updates and announcements
1. WIC Audit

An auditor from the state comptroller’s office is doing the 2-year WIC review. This and the
CACFP onsite audits are the most rigorous program audits. CFO has been fielding questions
and requests.

2. Grants Analyst – Staffing
Down a grants analyst for12 weeks. Have an offer out to a qualified internal candidate.

b) November 30, 2023 Program Budget Summary
One Change prior to BOD meeting.
WIC: ECM revenue greater than expenses. They made $11k in ECM revenue and the Path Cited
grant is paying expenses. WIC also just received another grant of $62k from CCAH. The extra
program income will eventually become an endowment.
EED: The PD is doing everything she needs to be doing. HP is currently projecting $33k loss for
the year. Fiscal is only showing projected revenue for children currently enrolled. A toddler
teacher was hired, and the toddler room will be open.  Only a few places in the county take
toddlers. Last year the program only brought in $100k parent fees (tuition), and this year is
projected at $191k based on current enrollment.
ELD – ADA was 44 in November because of a medical closure. Anytime you have a closure like
that, there’s going to be a few that don’t come back right away. Going to have to figure out a
way to increase ADA. Do we have a path out? Haven’t been down in Watsonville long enough
to get ADA up. ECM is slow getting started. ELD has hired a new social worker. The other big
thing is the RN submitted her resignation and will be departing in 7 weeks. That’s going to
slow down some enrollments. Not sure they can do all the day to day work, plus the

13

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/326410777


enrollments. CFO doesn’t think that the ADA will go down more, they’re growing but at 
smaller pace. They are doing a lot of media outreach. ELD will need to focus on the ECM side. 
Is it helpful for the board to say, “We want to see by the end of Q3 58 and end of Q4 64?” CFO 
thinks it’s effective to ask PD to come to FC to explain what’s going on.  

 CEO recommends that it is brought up at the full board. FC Chair would also like PD to come 
to the next FC meeting. CB is going to need the full board advocacy re: reimbursement rate. 
At the statewide level we need to be engaged. 
MOW – Who’s speaking at the FFTH event? – Michelle Bassi, whole room should be told about 
ELD. $140k lease hold improvements are being reduced to 85K. Expected some resolution 
with the current lease. Their net is going to improve by 65k – projected down 135k. MOW 
started off the year with 213k of prior year funds. We usually throw in about 60% of what we 
think we’re going to get in OTO and state augmentation funding and will likely receive more. 
Same with donations. CB knows that MOW gets AAA funding in January or February, but fiscal 
doesn’t put it in the budget until CB has the funds.  
LL did a lot of wage increases for drivers and hired some additional drivers. Currently 
projecting a $40k loss. There is some profit that will come in, including some profit for the 
delivery of the armory services unhoused. 
FRCs – It’s hard to come up with a clear picture of the FRC operations. Spending funds that 
came in last year and donations. These aren’t really going to be losses, moving prior year 
donations that are parked outside the programs. Slight loss right now, but that’s with 
deferring significant revenue. Will produce a report of prior year funding. 
CACFP is looking solid, gains last year, state reimbursement can only be spent on allowable 
expenses, but it can be retained earnings and the state payments are $30-$40k a year.  
Admin is a strong point, because of the increased program spending, it’s also because of 
nearly 3 months without a Grants Analyst.  
Development is showing a loss, but that’s not necessarily a loss, as a $40K payment was 
made to do the ballot measure study. That payment is a one-time that can’t fall into admin, 
but may be funded from grant funding.  
LOCC saw a big rebound. They combined the November and December statements and the 
gain was $41k.  
CBHQ revenues are exceeding expenses. We like to match those. There’s no reason to give 
back money at the end of the year. 
501 Main St – Outside renters there’s still some work, going back and forth with Swenson 
Endowment same thing decent size gain.  
EED – CDE additional $41k – no expiration date. Just leave the funds parked. 
  

c)       Investments and Funds – December 31, 2023 
 

d)      Cash Flow – provided at meeting 
All T-Bills were due – rolled that over 4/23 maturity rate 

5:25 EED SB 140 allocation 
 $41k in more CDE funding. 

14



5:30 ELD YTD ADA = 54, Nov ADA = 44.45 (temp closure) 
FY ADA 54. December is running higher than November. Projecting 58 ADA for the year. 
We built a budget originally around 65. Reeling it back to 58 is conservative. Need to 
show an increase trend in the ADA. This time of year, it’s weather dependent and also 
there’s an uptick in Covid cases. Considering December is historically the lowest 
month, we’re hoping January will increase from that.  

5:35 501 Main change order 
Change order – Can we do some of the work ourselves? $48k of work they’re 
proposing for $76k.  

5:40 Closed Session 
 
6:00 Adjourn 
 
 

Next Meeting February 14th, 2024 
 

15



Advocacy Committee Meeting 
Thursday, January 11, 2024 

4:00pm-5:30pm 
Zoom:https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86553229947?pwd=enJzaml6MmhxRFhsVGJsbG1MYlp

PQT09 
Meeting ID: 865 5322 9947 

Passcode: 6GNn4 

Present: Mary McMillan, Ray Cancino, Sara Seigel, Lois Sones 
Minutes: Mary Mackenzie 
Guests: Marcus Pimentel, Dori Rose Inda, Matt Huffaker, Nicole Colburn 

DRAFT AGENDA 

4:04 1. Introductions, Times/Dates/Locations for Ongoing Meetings 
Introductions. 
Committee is made up of Board and Staff (2 each), Ray is tie breaker. Full board will 
meet next week. 
This is the check list that we use to help guide our Advocacy goals. 
Elevator Speech – Send out after the meeting. 

4:10 2. Discussion of Mission, Purpose, Outcomes and Plan (Ray/Tony) 
a. Goals, Objectives, and Measurable Annual Outcomes

Skipped
4:20 3. Review Current Community Bridges Speech 

Skipped 
4:42 4. Santa Cruz City, Measure K (Matt Huffaker) 

Introduction of Matt Huffaker 
Background: 
High Quality Essential services for all 
Progress in Action which includes housing affordability. The city exceeded the 5th 
regional housing needs allocation targets in every income category. Only 6 jurisdictions 
in the state made these targets. 
The city received the State Pro Housing designation. 
There are 2000 units in development in Santa Cruz. 
Redevelopment of the Metro Station – Pac Station South amd Pac Station North. 
Cedar Street Apartments (65 units). 
Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project (128 units). 
1800 are unhoused in the county, of which about 1000 are in the city of Santa Cruz. 

16

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86553229947?pwd=enJzaml6MmhxRFhsVGJsbG1MYlpPQT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86553229947?pwd=enJzaml6MmhxRFhsVGJsbG1MYlpPQT09


185 temporary sleeping spaces, 74 in long term statble housing, 578 people served in 
sheltering safe parking programs, 77 with family and friends. 
The working middle class is getting priced out.  
Challenges: fires, floodings, lack affordable housing, etc.  
Long Range Financial Plan – Many cities, including Santa Cruz are struggling to keep up 
with services. By 2027 we will have depleted reserves and will be in the red, which will 
substantially change services.  
50% of tax in the city is paid by visitors. The sales tax measure helps make sure that they 
pay their share.  
Respond to needs of community – invest in affordable housing, connecting people 
experiencing homelessness with services and shelter. 
Other aspects include, Food and housing programs, public  safety and emergency 
response efforts, including Wildfire Preparedness, Infrastructure enhancements for safer 
communities.  
How many cities, have this rate in Santa Cruz County? County is at 9% 
Capitola 9%, Santa Cruz 9.25%, Watsonville 9.75%, Scotts Valley 9.75%, 9.75% is state 
max.  
If there is a way that the city can make a commitment to social services – they are part of 
the CORE, the city’s ability to bring commitments back up to where they have been pre-
covid. Absolutely see that as being synergistic.  
Found nothing about Resident Oversite, Citizen Oversite – always concern when it comes 
to general taxes. We have provided some assurances on how the measure is crafted, at 
the end of the day it is a general tax measure, and it will go into the general fund. 
Homeless services is this to fund existing services or expand services like more 
emergency shelters $4M to operate the Armory, and $4M has been transferred to the 
general fund already, not in position to transfer the rest of the funding, hope to leverage 
Home Key fundings, to build a permanent navigation center. That is the city contribution. 
The city fully runs and operate the armory.  

4:13 5. Parjaro Valley Healthcare District, Measure N (Dori Rose Inda and Marcus 
Pimentel)  

 Presenting for the committee for the improvement and expansion of local health care.  
 Update on the hospital: 33390 Emergency Room visits, 1971 Surgeries, 834 Babies 

delivered, 225,946 Lab test, 9879 Rehab sessions (physical, occupational and speech 
therapy), 5331 Wound care procedures. 
There are also 650 staff members, 300 physicians and medical staff.  
The population is mostly Spanish speaking, also takes on patients that are diverted from 
Dominican (due to code red status which is when the hospital closes the ED to ppl in 
through emergency, but allows walk ins). 
Pajaro Valley Health Care District oversees the hospital. Improve healthcare to the Pajaro 
valley area. It was formed really quickly in 2022. HPI Score 3.0. The community has some 
of the worst community scores in the area. Hospitals are not the only provider, Salud is 
great, but does not offer the same services as a hospital. WCH, Dominican and Sutter are 
three major providers, 70% of Spanish speakers come to WCH.  

17



WCH is turning the tide. Hospital Board took over in 2022 (September), in 16 months 
eliminated the deficit of $30M deficit in 16 months.  
Yes on N:  
All volunteer campaign committee – Supported by John Laird, Luis Alejo, Zach Friend 
and Felipe Hernandez as well as the County of Monterey, Nurses and providers. Moving 
forward for March ballot measure – March 5th. 74% of those surveyed in a poll from July 
are in support.  
Measure N is a Tax Measure which would impose a $24 for every $100,000 assessed 
value. The measure would include an oversite committee. Marcus invited any of our 
board members or staff that are interested to consider being on the oversite committee. 
Land was sold out to a real estate investment trust. Rent control is gone in a few years. 
Part of the funds from this measure would help to return the land and building to local 
control. It would also help an expansion of the ED through an expansion of urgent care, 
replace medical tools, and redesign patient rooms, It would also help with facility 
improvements. The property owner would pay approximately $70-$200/year for 30 
years. The goal is to bring the hospital up to its future state. We are at the ready to be 
taxed in order to support the hospital. Community Bridges has been part of helping to 
get hospital to stay in community. The district has started and continued to see a future, 
part of an understanding that we would need this next phase. It is a hospital that needs 
to be improved, in terms of physical infrastructure. This has come to the public as a 
surprise. It is the next step, the next phase. Committed to serving this community with 
quality care.  
Thank you both for being public servants, both professionally and personally.  
March is an important cycle. There is a limited time to buy the land back so need cash in 
hand due to the time frame they have.  

5:03 6. Santa Cruz County, Measure L (Nicole Coburn) 
 Introductions 

About the County – State Mandated Countywide Services and City-like Municiplal 
services. The County provides major services to unincorporated areas of the county. 
Santa Cruz County is a serving much higher proportion than their peers, 35% higher, and 
88% less revenue per capita than peers.  
Housing needs for families and protecting our community from climate change are the 
main priorities. Trying to figure out and work on plans for county employees. 17 natural 
disasters since 2017. Looking at a bond financing for this year. 
Meeting needs: Investing in our community – helped save Watsonville hospital, county 
service center, help secure funding for Pajaro Levee Project.  
Climate Change: Office of Response, Recovery and Resilience and we Partner when we do 
have a disaster. Still a lot to do in that area. Polled last summer showed that the 
community considers the following as priorities: Wildfire and Emergency Response, 
Roads, Potholes and Parks, and Providing healthy and safe community.  
More to do: Provide emergency response and recovery services, attracting and retaining 
frontline workers, develop affordable housing, repairing streets and potholes, provide 
mental health crisis services for children and vulnerable services. Sales tax is currently the 
same as Capitola, This would add $.50 sales tax, so still below state maximum of 9.75%. If 

18



this gets passed, starting in October the county will receive $7.5M in first year, and $10M 
going forward.  
Public disclosure of all funding with annual budget and financial audit, County sales tax 
applies only in the unincorporated area, if you’re in the city then you pay city rate. All 
voters get to vote on the County Measure. These are funds that the state can’t take away. 
Governor just released the state budget, and there’s a deficit.  
BOS when they placed measure on the ballot, did pass a resoluition with it. Affordable 
housing, navigation centers, invest in climate resiliency, and road repairs and 
infrastructure.  
Why did county decide to go 9.5% vs. 9.75% is the polling that different? 
With a half cent sales tax polling great, when the percentage goes up, the polling goes 
down.  
Where is the planned mid-county navigation center? Old Harbor Vet Building, near 
current behavior health building is on Soquel. North county – sites by Housing Matters. 
South county is Church with Monterey County.  
Do not see oversite committee, do you have one? Somehow acknowledge in the budget 
that dollars will be used for what was stated, hopefully supplemental, this is a general 
tax, but look for ways to message and convey what dollars were used for and what’s 
happening.  
Is there any plans to increase the bed capacity to the crisis stabilization location? There’s 
conversations about putting beds in other locations (Watsonville Hospital).  
Saw the expansion contract for help to maintain for Mobile Crisis Team? This is a tool 
that we can use to continue things in the future.  
Is there any thought given to increasing CORE funding? There’s so much talk about how 
the pie needs to be grown. We need to weigh everything as a whole and see what we 
can do.  

5:20 7. Next Meeting/Agenda Items/Closing Remarks (10 min) 
 3 Measures –  

Hospital: My only questions would be in terms of giving funds. Only time we gave funds 
was when we were fighting to keep the hospital in the community. $5000 in support 
would be recommendation of the CEO. 
Recommendation to move forward with $5000.00 donation and to support the 
measure. January 27th will be a call to action – they’re already using our space. 
City of Santa Cruz – Tried to hold Matt (or city manager), First time they have called out 
unhoused. If they don’t get funding, they would get closed. Don’t feel that needs of 
agency are put first. They can use our name and goodwill – not giving city and county 
money. County’s arguments are weak – so vague. If we do support these, then it should 
be accompanied by a letter to the Board. Cannot feel sorry for them saying they’re 
lowest property taxed, politicians wouldn’t vote for them.  
Recommendation to support but with accompanying letter.  

5:30 8. Adjourn 
 
 

19



Development Committee 
December 13, 2023 Notes 

1. Fundraising Update (40 minutes)

a. November Donations Report – Anna
We have raised $196K this quarter, including $50K major gifts compared to

$26K this time last year. Last year we also received a one-time gift of $36K from

the disbandment of Associated of Watsonville Area Seniors, which provided
oversight for Watsonville Senior Center now under Watsonville Parks.

We have also received $17K in Flood Relief donations this year, and these are

supporting operating expenses for the new Pajaro resource center. We have
incorporated these gifts into the running total. This brings our year over year

total to 0.5% ahead of last year, and our goal is to grow by 5% or $50K.

b. Upcoming Events

i. Giving Tuesday - Nov 28
We have prepared materials to raise $30K online flash campaign after

Cyber Monday. This is a stretch goal to support general operations plus

disaster recovery services. Development Dept will provide messaging
for Board and staff to share with their networks. Some programs have

more name recognition, and gifts can be designated to any program.

We will highlight the services most in need of support in promotions.

ii. Pajaro Rising - Nov 30

A group of prominent local authors are hosting a reading and book

signing event to benefit Pajaro Flood Relief services, with all proceeds

going to Community Bridges. We will circulate invitation to the Board.

iii. Food from the Heart - Feb 2

A committee of Friends of Meals on Wheels members is helping plan

the 11th annual Food from the Heart luncheon. The event will be held

at Chaminade Resort of Friday, Feb 2 from 1am to 1pm.

c. Upcoming Campaigns

i. Year-end fundraising campaigns are in progress, including CB & MOW
Fall Mailers. We are bringing the CB calendar mailing back this year

because it raised more money than not sending it. We are participating

in Santa Cruz Gives for Elderday, Monterey County Gives for Pajaro

resource center, and Subaru Share the Love for Meals on Wheels.

20



 

 

2. Events (20 minutes) 

a. Farm to Fork 2024 venue – Anna  

We polled the Farm to Fork committee volunteers and presented the results. 
After lengthy discussion we eliminated one of the Top 5 down to 4 options. We 

are looking for a space that has indoor dining and outdoor reception space, 

plenty of space for up to 150 guests, that is on theme with the event supporting 

Community Bridges which is headquartered in Watsonville. If we choose a 
venue that can hold less than 100 guests, we will need to increase cultivation 

of other income sources to raise the ticket price, ambience, auction items and 

major gifts. The committee was unable to recommend any of the four options 
over the others. One idea was to alternate north and south county locations, or 

choose a venue where we hold other events and brand it as our agency venue.  

 

 
Next meeting: 

2nd Wednesdays at 11am 
Wed, December 13, 2023 

via Zoom 

21



Development Committee 
January 10, 2023 Notes 

1. Fundraising Updates 11:00 – 11:40 (40 minutes)

a. December Donations Report (10 mins)

Donations are up 60% compared to December of last year. CB & MOW Fall

mailers, Giving Tuesday, general, monthly, and major gifts have all increased

this year due to the increase in support we gained for our flood responses.

Major gifts are up 55%, which we attribute to earned media appealing to high

information donors. We have expanded outreach in earned and paid media,

email newsletters and mailers. We are developing major donor cultivation.
Event revenue is down, needing cultivation of donors and sponsorships.

b. Upcoming Events & Campaigns (10 mins)

i. Food from the Heart – Feb 2

Friends of Meals on Wheels committee members have gathered an

event planning committee of 15 volunteers supporting sponsorships,

tickets, auction items and hospitality. Volunteers are helpful with
spreading the word and making introductions with new contacts.

ii. FRC Spring Mailer – March 11

Our new spring mailer will highlight our accomplishments one-year
post flood. We have hired support with data entry and maintenance to

communicate with new contacts and continue to increase outreach.

iii. Community Champions – March 18

Meals on Wheels will invite partners to deliver meals and visit dining
sites the week of March 18 in a publicity campaign to highlight the

programs needs and the issues facing participants. It’s a good

opportunity to invite new contacts to learn about the program.

22



c. Future Events & Campaigns (20 mins)

i. FRC Phone-a-Thon – April tbd

MCR has a commitment to raise $12,000 in April. We will plan activities

to connect with supporters and highlight news at the program.

ii. Planned Giving Mixer – May tbd

We have seen success with planned gifts through both individuals that
make these decisions with their hearts, and their advisors that can

encourage the financial benefits. We will plan outreach activities to

highlight opportunities for planned giving at Community Bridges.

iii. Farm to Fork – July tbd

Our first choice for Farm to Fork venue is Pajaro Dunes Lagoon House,

but this is a private venue. Committee members are looking into
contacts that could potentially sponsor us.

2. Committee Updates 11:40 – 11:50 (10 minutes)

a. Board & Committee Invitations (10 mins)

Michael Babich has stepped down from the board and committees after
serving four years very dedicatedly. Development Committee will

acknowledge his contributions. Stephanie has recruited two volunteers that

can help with event planning and other activities. Committee members can

help us brainstorm sponsor introductions. Development Dept will prepare a
list of current and potential business relationships and our contacts.

Next meeting: 

Wed, February 14, 2024 

2nd Wednesdays at 11am 

via Zoom 

23



��������	
����������
����	����������
��

�������������������	����������� !"#$!�%&���&'�(�$)*!+,-�*./01�2232435657�5826�9�/-8�:;�;-��)�-<�=$�!�>-�+�%:;;?='�(�$)*!+,-�*.�:�8�@-����1+>�<<��%"-��&'�(�$)*!+,-�*.�2��>>��0&!">+�A2B�C;D1<E*��">+E�!+-F1>$-"E22E2GE52,)-�HIJK�LMMN�OPQ�RSTTU�O�VKVWPX�YZX�X[KR�TZRSM\XKSW�KW�XKQZ�XS�]VV�X[KR�XS�X[Z�]YZWV]�]X�X[Z�̂S]TV�_ZZXKWY�M]RXWKY[XN�̀\X�KX�a]QZ�KW�b\RX�]X�X[Z�ZWV�Sc�X[Z�dSTe�V]Uf�gS�aSWRZh\ZWXMUN�RKWaZ�X[KR�KR�]W�ZQ]KM�iSXZ�SW]�̂S]TV�jZRSM\XKSWN�dZ�dKMM�WZZV�kllm�n]TXKaKn]XKSW�]WV�]�\W]WKQS\R�iSXZf�oZ�dKMM�WZZV�X[KR�iSXZÙ�_SWV]UN�pSiZQ̀ ZT�qlX[�rŝf�t[KR�nTSbZaX�]KQR�XS�XT]WRcSTQ�S\T�nTZRa[SSM�RKXZR�KWXS�iK̀T]WX�YTZZW�MZ]TWKWY�S]RZRN�nTSiKVKWYa[KMVTZW�dKX[�SnnSTX\WKXKZR�XS�aSWWZaX�dKX[�W]X\TZN�cSRXZT�]�MKcZMSWY�]nnTZaK]XKSW�cST�X[ZZWiKTSWQZWXN�]WV�ZWY]YZ�KW�[]WVRuSW�MZ]TWKWY�ZvnZTKZWaZRf�t[Z�nTSbZaX�dKMM�KWiSMiZ�aTZ]XKWY�]i]TKZXU�Sc�W]X\T]M�nM]U�]TZ]RN�nM]WXKWY�XTZZR�]WV�SX[ZT�iZYZX]XKSWN�]WV�KWaSTnST]XKWY�R\RX]KW]̀MZM]WVRa]nKWY�nT]aXKaZRf�t[]WeRN_]TU_]TU�_]aeZWwKZ�xnTSWS\WR�R[ZN�[ZTN�[ZTRyLRRKRX]WX�XS�X[Z�rzsN�rSQQ\WKXU�̂TKVYZR{k|�_]KW�gXTZZXN�o]XRSWiKMMZN�rL�|{l}~������kf~��f���l�vql}�r���ql~f�k|fq�}���������kf~��f��lq�rSQQ\WKXÛTKVYZRfSTY����]aZ̀SSe���tdKXXZT����KWeZVOW���zuWZdRMZXXZT������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
24



��������	�
����������������	��������	���������������	��������	������������ !�"�#$���%&����'()�!*����'+�(, �-�../01/0102�.0304�5 6�3� &#7� &+��-89��%(&#7()+:#9;<�='�#<,�>�?@AB�CBDEFGHIJDK�LHMCE
NOPQR�LHMC�LHSJBITUB�VWHMCWXSYMUZ[BDE@M[\]̂_̀R�FGaMDZHCK�b@?BWYBM�cdK�efeg�ehcf�iLjPR�kl�l@HMZ�@m�nUMBSA@MD�VkllonXSYMUZ[BDE@M[\pqR�b@MH�LaDAHrH�VI@MHWXSYMUZ[BDE@M[\]stûq̀R�vWHUw�x@AB�@I�l@HMZ�yBD@waz@Ih�kHw{UMB�|MBBI�}SG@@wCHMZ�H~~wUSHz@I�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ¡¡¢�£������£����������������������������¤��������������������������������¥��������¦¡���§̈���©����£�����������������������������£��������������������������������������������������£�����������������������££������������������������������������������������������££�������������������������������������������������ª�������������«£����������©���£�������������������������������������������������£�����������£���������������������������������������������£��������������������������£����£����������©���������������������¬���£����������������������®�����������������§̄ �̈�§����������������° ±��������������¤������������§��±°¡²³�́µ�¶· �³¶¶�¶¶̧¡�«¦¡²�§�µ�¦¡³�¶ ±�¦̧²¶��¹�µ�¶· �³¶¶�¶·¡¦�§��������������������µ�¹��������µ�©�������µ�º��������µ�̄ª�����������»¼½½¾¿ÀÁÂ�ÃÄÀÅÆÇÈ�Ç¿ÉÀÈÀ¼¿È�Ê�ÁËÄÀÉÀ¿Æ�Ì¼½½¾¿ÀÁÂ�ÍËÇÄÇ�ÇÉÇÄÂ�ÎÇÄÈ¼¿�ËÊÈ�ÁËÇ�¼ÎÎ¼ÄÁ¾¿ÀÁÂ�Á¼¾¿ÏÇÊÈË�ÁËÇÀÄ�Ð¾ÏÏ�Î¼ÁÇ¿ÁÀÊÏÑ�Ò¾Ä�ÐÊ½ÀÏÂ�¼Ð�ÁÇ¿�ÎÄ¼ÆÄÊ½È�ÅÇÏÀÉÇÄÈ�ÇÈÈÇ¿ÁÀÊÏ�ÈÇÄÉÀÌÇÈÓ�ÎÄ¼ÉÀÅÇÈ�ÇÔ¾ÀÁÊÕÏÇÊÌÌÇÈÈ�Á¼�ÄÇÈ¼¾ÄÌÇÈÓ�Ê¿Å�ÊÅÉ¼ÌÊÁÇÈ�Ð¼Ä�ËÇÊÏÁË�Ê¿Å�ÅÀÆ¿ÀÁÂ�ÊÌÄ¼ÈÈ�ÇÉÇÄÂ�ÈÁÊÆÇ�¼Ð�ÏÀÐÇÑ� 25



�

26



��������	�
����������������	��������	���������������	��������	��������������� !�"�#$���$��� !�"%�!&��'()*+�,,-,.-/0/1�23/0�45)�3�5�67�5���8"9:8�#'�67'%� 6:;<8!&�6<(�=�3�=>�>��6;��?�@:68�A�6!�#=>>B@%� 6:;<8!&�6<(C�D�6��5+!A�??��#"�6�'%� 6:;<8!&�6<(�E8"A�?6�'�'7�:4*�"8B"�D�F�,.G�/0/1G��A�/3,0�45G�5�67�5���8"9:8�#'�67'%� 6:;<8!&�6<(�H6�A83I�F�A8�78!J�<68�A�:;8�KL�MNNO�PQR�STUUV�P�WLWXQY�Z[Y�Y\LS�U[STN]YLTX�LX�YLR[�YT�̂WW�Y\LS�YT�Y\[�̂Z[XŴ�̂Y�Y\[�_T̂UW[̀[YLXZ�N̂SY�XLZ\YO�a]Y�LY�b̂R[�LX�c]SY�̂Y�Y\[�[XW�Td�Y\[�eTUf�ŴVg�hT�bTXS[i][XYNVO�SLXb[Y\LS�LS�̂X�[R̂ LN�jTY[�TX�̂�_T̂UW�k[STN]YLTXO�e[�eLNN�X[[W�lmmn�ôUYLbLôYLTX�̂XW�̂]X̂XLRT]S�jTY[g�p[�eLNN�X[[W�Y\LS�jTY[�aV�̀TXŴVO�qTj[Ra[U�rmY\�st_g�u\LS�oUTc[bY�̂LRS�YT�YÛXSdTUR�T]U�oU[Sb\TTN�SLY[S�LXYT�jLaÛXY�ZU[[X�N[̂UXLXZ�T̂S[SOoUTjLWLXZ�b\LNWU[X�eLY\�TooTUY]XLYL[S�YT�bTXX[bY�eLY\�X̂Y]U[O�dTSY[U�̂�NLd[NTXZôoU[bL̂YLTX�dTU�Y\[�[XjLUTXR[XYO�̂XW�[XẐZ[�LX�\̂XWSvTX�N[̂UXLXZ�[wo[UL[Xb[Sg�u\[oUTc[bY�eLNN�LXjTNj[�bU[̂YLXZ�̂�ĵUL[YV�Td�X̂Y]ÛN�oN̂V�̂U[̂SO�oN̂XYLXZ�YU[[S�̂XW�TY\[Uj[Z[ŶYLTXO�̂XW�LXbTUoTÛYLXZ�S]SŶLX̂aN[�N̂XWSb̂oLXZ�oÛbYLb[Sg�u\̂XfSO`̂ UV`̂ UV�̀ b̂f[XxL[�yoUTXT]XS�S\[O�\[UO�\[USzMSSLSŶXY�YT�Y\[�s{tO�sTRR]XLYV�_ULWZ[S|l}�̀ L̂X�hYU[[YO�p ŶSTXjLNN[O�sM�}|m~�������lg���g���m�wrm~�s���rm�g�l}gr�~���������lg���g��mr�sTRR]XLYV_ULWZ[SgTUZ����̂b[aTTf���ueLYY[U����LXf[WPX���{vX[eSN[YY[U������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ����¡����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
27



��������	
�������
�	��������������

28



��������	�
����������������	��������	���������������	��������	�������������� !!�"�#$���$��%&%'()$� !*�+$,-./�%%0%102324�5627�8�-+6���������9:"; :�#$���$(�<� =):>*+�),�?�6�?@�@+��=�+A�B �:�C+�>�#?@@DB(�<� =):>*+�),E�F+����/>C�AA��#"+��$(�<� =):>*+�),�G�H+C:��:>*D"�-./I�F+H�%1I�2324��C�26%3�8����������9:"; :�#$���$(�<� =):>*+�),�J�+C:6KL�MNNO�PQR�STUUV�P�WLWXQY�Z[Y�Y\LS�U[STN]YLTX�LX�YLR[�YT�̂WW�Y\LS�YT�Y\[�̂Z[XŴ�̂Y�Y\[�_T̂UW�̀[[YLXZ�N̂SYXLZ\YO�a]Y�LY�b̂R[�LX�c]SY�̂Y�Y\[�[XW�Td�Y\[�eTUf�ŴVg�hT�bTXS[i][XYNVO�SLXb[�Y\LS�LS�̂X�[R̂ LN�jTY[TX�̂�_T̂UW�k[STN]YLTXO�e[�eLNN�X[[W�lmmn�ôUYLbLôYLTX�̂XW�̂�]X̂XLRT]S�jTY[g�p[�eLNN�X[[WY\LS�jTY[�aV�̀TXŴVO�qTj[Ra[U�rmY\�st_g�u\LS�oUTc[bY�̂LRS�YT�YÛXSdTUR�T]U�oU[Sb\TTN�SLY[S�LXYT�jLaÛXY�ZU[[X�N[̂UXLXZ�T̂S[SO�oUTjLWLXZb\LNWU[X�eLY\�TooTUY]XLYL[S�YT�bTXX[bY�eLY\�X̂Y]U[O�dTSY[U�̂�NLd[NTXZ�̂ooU[bL̂YLTX�dTU�Y\[[XjLUTXR[XYO�̂XW�[XẐZ[�LX�\̂XWSvTX�N[̂UXLXZ�[wo[UL[Xb[Sg�u\[�oUTc[bY�eLNN�LXjTNj[�bU[̂YLXZ�̂ĵUL[YV�Td�X̂Y]ÛN�oN̂V�̂U[̂SO�oN̂XYLXZ�YU[[S�̂XW�TY\[U�j[Z[ŶYLTXO�̂XW�LXbTUoTÛYLXZ�S]SŶLX̂aN[N̂XWSb̂oLXZ�oÛbYLb[Sg�u\̂XfSO`̂ UV`̂ UV�̀ b̂f[XxL[�yoUTXT]XS�S\[O�\[UO�\[USzMSSLSŶXY�YT�Y\[�s{tO�sTRR]XLYV�_ULWZ[S|l}�̀ L̂X�hYU[[YO�p ŶSTXjLNN[O�sM�}|m~�������lg���g���m�wrm~�s���rm�g�l}gr�~���������lg���g��mr�sTRR]XLYV_ULWZ[SgTUZ����̂b[aTTf���ueLYY[U����LXf[WPX���{vX[eSN[YY[U������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����¡�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
29



��������	�
����������������	��������	���������������	��������	������������ !"# $"�#�%&� !"# $"�#'() �!*�+),-."�//0/102324�56/7�89-+6�9 :;�9�9�!! &�%) :;) �/</5'() �!*�+),���6�9 :;�9 ��=&>�=�%) :;)'�#:�?(=@*+:(,A��B�B+ :?�+C�D�:=�E+:@�%�BBFD'�#:�?(=@*+:(,A��+: �9"@E CC %&+: )'�#:�?(=@*+:(,�G�H+E=�;=@*�����I=&E�C:+)�);��8.+&=F&��+H�/1J�2324J� E�K675�89J�9 :;�9�9�!! &�%) :;) �/</5'() �!*�+),�L:+E=6G�H+E=�;=@*F&�-."J��+H�/1J�2324� E�26/3�89�9 :;�9 ��=&>�=�%) :;)'�#:�?(=@*+:(,�L:+E=6MN�OPPQ�RST�UVWWX�R�YNYZS[�\][�[̂NU�W]UVP_[NVZ�NZ�[NT]�[V�̀YY�[̂NU�[V�[̂]�̀\]ZỲ�̀[�[̂]�aV̀WYb]][NZ\�P̀U[�ZN\̂[Q�c_[�N[�d̀T]�NZ�e_U[�̀[�[̂]�]ZY�Vf�[̂]�gVWh�ỲXi�jV�dVZU]k_]Z[PXQUNZd]�[̂NU�NU�̀Z�]T̀ NP�lV[]�VZ�̀�aV̀WY�m]UVP_[NVZQ�g]�gNPP�Z]]Y�noop�q̀W[NdNq̀[NVZZ̀Y�̀�_Z̀ZNTV_U�lV[]i�r]�gNPP�Z]]Y�[̂NU�lV[]�cX�bVZỲXQ�sVl]Tc]W�to[̂�uvai�ŵNU�qWVe]d[�̀NTU�[V�[ẀZUfVWT�V_W�qW]Ud̂VVP�UN[]U�NZ[V�lNcẀZ[�\W]]Z�P]̀WZNZ\�V̀U]UQqWVlNYNZ\�d̂NPYW]Z�gN[̂�VqqVW[_ZN[N]U�[V�dVZZ]d[�gN[̂�Z̀[_W]Q�fVU[]W�̀�PNf]PVZ\q̀qW]dǸ[NVZ�fVW�[̂]�]ZlNWVZT]Z[Q�̀ZY�]Z\̀\]�NZ�̂̀ ZYUxVZ�P]̀WZNZ\�]yq]WN]Zd]Ui�ŵ]qWVe]d[�gNPP�NZlVPl]�dW]̀[NZ\�̀�l̀WN][X�Vf�Z̀[_ẀP�qP̀X�̀W]̀UQ�qP̀Z[NZ\�[W]]U�̀ZY�V[̂]Wl]\][̀[NVZQ�̀ZY�NZdVWqVẀ[NZ\�U_U[̀NZ̀cP]�P̀ZYUd̀qNZ\�qẀd[Nd]Ui�ŵ Z̀hUQb̀ WXb̀ WX�b̀ dh]ZzN]�{qWVZV_ZU�Û]Q�̂]WQ�̂]WU|OUUNU[̀Z[�[V�[̂]�u}vQ�uVTT_ZN[X�aWNY\]U~n��b̀ NZ�j[W]][Q�r [̀UVZlNPP]Q�uO��~o��������ni���i���o�yto��u���to�i�n�it�����������ni���i��ot�uVTT_ZN[XaWNY\]UiVW\����̀d]cVVh���wgN[[]W����NZh]YRZ���}xZ]gUP][[]W�
30



���������	
�����	���������	�	�������	���������	�����	�����	������	���	��������������	��	�������	�����	����	����������	���	������	��	���	�������	��������	������������������	��������	���������	������	��	����������	���	���������	���	������	���	������������	�����	����	��	�����		

31



����������	
���
��
�������
����
������������������

���������������
����� !"��#$�%�&����� !"�'#$�%()*"+,-%%+',-./0�$�1121324546�7849�:;0-8�; *<�; ,=�!>"��&. *<.(,?*")@�+'-*@/A�BC�C- *)�-D�E"*�,�-*+�&BCCFE(,?*")@�+'-*@/�B,8�G-* �;$+� DD �&!-* .(,?*")@�+'-*@/�H�IJKL�MLNO�PQRL�SQTLU�VKLWXYZ�[\]̂_̀â\abc�defgh�YQTM�YQSRLijkL�lmQTMmnSoTkpqLNOJTqrstuvh�PXwTNpQMU�xJILmoLT�]yU�_z_\�_Z]]�{Y|fh�}~�~JQTp�J���kTLSKJTN�l}~~��nSoTkpqLNOJTqr��h�xJTQ�YwNKQ�Q�liJTQmnSoTkpqLNOJTqrs���t�vh����P���mQk���JKL�Ji�~JQTp��LNJ�w�JiZ�}Q��kTL��TLLi�VSXJJ�MQTp�QWW�kSQ�Ji�PXL�L̂mQk��oL�J��kN��TJm�Qi�L�KLTiQ��NJwTSLO�{�LQNL�pJ�iJK�JWLi�Q�QSXmLiKN�JT�S�kSR��kiRN��TJm�Qi�wiRiJ�i�JTNwNWkSkJwN�JTkqkiO����������������� ���¡�¡¢�£�¤¥£�£¦����¥���§£��¢��¢�£��¥�£��̈¡¡�£¦���£��£¦¥�̈¤¥¢¡̈�̈£�£¦¥�©�̈�¡�ª¥¥£�¢¤��̈�£¢�¤¦£��«§£��£�¬̈�¥��¢�§�£�̈£�£¦¥�¥¢¡��®�£¦¥�̄��°�¡̈ ±�²��¬�¢�¥³§¥¢£� ����¢¬¥�£¦������̈¢�¥�̈ ���́�£¥��¢�̈©�̈�¡�µ¥���§£��¢��̄¥�̄����¢¥¥¡�¶··̧ �¹̈�£�¬�¹̈£��¢�̈¢¡�̈�§¢̈¢���§��́�£¥±�º¥�̄����¢¥¥¡�£¦���́�£¥« �ª�¢¡̈ ��»�́¥�«¥��¼·£¦�½¾©±��¿¦���¹��¥¬£�̈����£��£�̈¢�®�����§��¹�¥�¬¦������£¥���¢£��́�«�̈¢£�¤�¥¥¢��¥̈�¢�¢¤��̈�¥���¹��́�¡�¢¤¬¦��¡�¥¢�̄�£¦��¹¹��£§¢�£�¥��£��¬�¢¢¥¬£�̄�£¦�¢̈£§�¥��®��£¥��̈���®¥��¢¤�̈¹¹�¥¬�̈£��¢�®���£¦¥¥¢́���¢�¥¢£��̈¢¡�¥¢¤̈¤¥��¢�¦̈¢¡�À�¢��¥̈�¢�¢¤�¥Á¹¥��¥¢¬¥�±�¿¦¥�¹��¥¬£�̄�����¢́��́¥�¬�¥̈£�¢¤�̈´̈��¥£ ��®�¢̈£§�̈��¹�̈ �̈�¥̈���¹�̈¢£�¢¤�£�¥¥��̈¢¡��£¦¥��́¥¤¥£̈£��¢��̈¢¡��¢¬��¹��̈£�¢¤��§�£̈�¢̈«�¥�̈¢¡�¬̈¹�¢¤�¹�̈¬£�¬¥�±��¿¦̈¢°��ª̈ � �ª̈ � �ª̈ ¬°¥¢Â�¥�Ã¹��¢�§¢���¦¥��¦¥���¦¥��Ä�����£̈¢£�£��£¦¥�½Å¾��½���§¢�£ �©��¡¤¥�Æ¶Ç�ª̈ �¢�²£�¥¥£��º £̈��¢́���¥��½��ÇÆ·ÈÉÊ�Ë�ÌÍ¶±ÉÌÌ±ÌÌÎ·�Á¼·È�½�Ë�¼·É±Ì¶Ç±¼ÎÈÌ��Ï�Ë�ÌÍ¶±ÉÌÌ±ÌÍ·¼�½���§¢�£ ©��¡¤¥�±��¤�Ë�Ï̈¬¥«��°�Ë�¿̄ �££¥��Ë�Ð�¢°¥¡�¢�Ë�ÅÀ¢¥̄��¥££¥��
32



���������	
�����	���������	�	�������	���������	�����	�����	������	���	���	�����������	���������	�����	����	����������	���	������	��	���	�������	��������	���������	���������	��������	���������������	��	����������	���	���������	���	������	���	������	������	�����	����	��	�����		

33



����������	
���
��
�������
����
������������������

���������������
�������� �!�"����#��� �!$%�&'�(�)*(+)&',(�# +-./0)�1121324546�7873�9:/+8��'�;0�&���<)0!�"�'�;0�&��#<)0!$=��%(+!!%#(+>.?�:��,�:�(@�&*���">��,>$(A��= �%#+� .?�BC�C+��=�+D�E���('+�%"BCCFE$(A��= �%#+� .�B(8�G+���:)%'�DD��"&+��>$(A��= �%#+� .�H�IJKL�MLN�OPQP�ORSTSUVLWXKM�YZJ[\]Ĵ�_̀ aLZ�HHHYZLKZb\c�VbIbNbĴ�dXWLZIbNJZd\̂K\�eZXf�eJX̂KM�YZJ[\]Ĵ�VLW\ZKgL̂Khijklmnmojmpn�J̀ aLd\Z\qNbLrLcsN\̂K\aZXfaJX̂KMa\qrJI�OtuSvwUSxyz{|}~�������������}�������{|}~�����������}������z��|}~������������}�������|{��|}~������}���������Q��x�dKLW�\̂bL��X�c��dKLW�\̂bLq�X�cs�ZbNaJccNqaJg�OS��x���XZN�\M���JILg[LZ�k���p�pj�m�pi�Y���x��\ZM��\a�L̂fbL��g\ZMgsa[Zb�rLNqJZr���e � J\Z��J¡�VbZLaKJZN��e  _Vsa[Zb�rLNqJZr�¢tx��JZ\��XNK\£\��̂JZ\gsa[Zb�rLNqJZr�Ow¤¥St�x��¦��¦g\bc�§JKL�Ĵ� J\Z���LNJcX]Ĵ��e\c̈bZL�©ZLL̂�da�JJcM\Z��\WWcba\]Ĵ� ªªªª«¬®̄°±²/0�%��%��&�³́/³<Gµ¶��>��!#�³·��(�%��(�)'�+&#�EF�GF/�+;�&��''�(0>�&'%�+��(!�(@!�&@%�D�+>�)&@&+̧ &�%�&=��%�+��)&�·;�('�=��>��!#ªªªªH�IJKL�MLNq��\�L�a\ZL��dKLW����ijkopnmojm¹º��Q��x��\ZM��\a�L̂fbL��g\ZMgsa[Zb�rLNqJZr�OS��x���XZN�\M���JILg[LZ�k���p�pj�p�kk�Y���x�e � J\Z��J¡�VbZLaKJZN��e  _Vsa[Zb�rLNqJZr�
34



���������	
���������������������������������� !"#$�!���%�&�������'�����(���%
)��*�+�%,����-�����.�/��%0�����11%���)���#/���2���%���%�3����4��������5�����%���
�����6%�������������1����7��/����������%��8�%��8��4�������
�8��3�����
�1����
���������9:�;<<=��>?@�ABCCD�>�E:EF?G�HIG�GJ:A�CIAB<KG:BF�:F�G:@I�GB�LEE�GJ:A�GB�GJI�LHIFEL�LG�GJI�MBLCE�NIIG:FH�<LAGF:HJG=�OKG�:G�PL@I�:F�QKAG�LG�GJI�IFE�BR�GJI�SBCT�ELDU�VB�PBFAIWKIFG<D=�A:FPI�GJ:A�:A�LF�I@L:<�XBGI�BFL�MBLCE�YIAB<KG:BF=�SI�S:<<�FIIE�Z[[\�]LCG:P:]LG:BF�LFE�L�KFLF:@BKA�XBGIU�̂I�S:<<�FIIE�GJ:A�XBGIOD�NBFELD=�_BXI@OIC�̀[GJ�abMU��cJ:A�]CBQIPG�L:@A�GB�GCLFARBC@�BKC�]CIAPJBB<�A:GIA�:FGB�X:OCLFG�HCIIF�<ILCF:FH�BLAIA=�]CBX:E:FHPJ:<ECIF�S:GJ�B]]BCGKF:G:IA�GB�PBFFIPG�S:GJ�FLGKCI=�RBAGIC�L�<:RI<BFH�L]]CIP:LG:BF�RBC�GJIIFX:CBF@IFG=�LFE�IFHLHI�:F�JLFEAdBF�<ILCF:FH�Ie]IC:IFPIAU�cJI�]CBQIPG�S:<<�:FXB<XI�PCILG:FH�LXLC:IGD�BR�FLGKCL<�]<LD�LCILA=�]<LFG:FH�GCIIA�LFE�BGJIC�XIHIGLG:BF=�LFE�:FPBC]BCLG:FH�AKAGL:FLO<I<LFEAPL]:FH�]CLPG:PIAU��cJLFTA=NLCD�NLCD�NLPTIFf:I�g]CBFBKFA�AJI=�JIC=�JICAh;AA:AGLFG�GB�GJI�aib=�aB@@KF:GD�MC:EHIAjZk�NL:F�VGCIIG=�̂LGABFX:<<I=�a;�kj[lmn�o�pqZUmppUppr[�è[l�a�o�̀[mUpZkÙrlp��s�o�pqZUmppUpq[̀�aB@@KF:GDMC:EHIAUBCH�o�sLPIOBBT�o�cS:GGIC�o�t:FTIE>F�o�idFISA<IGGIC�uvwwxyz{|�}~z������y�z�zvy����{�~z�zy���vwwxyz{|����~�����~|���~�vy�����{���v��v~{xyz{|�{vxy������{��z~��x����v{�y{z�����x~���wz�|�v��{�y��~v�~�w�����z��~������y{z�����~�z������~v�z������xz{�����������{v�~��vx~������y�����v��{����v~�����{���y���z�yz{|���~v������~|��{����v���z�����
35



����������	
���������	���������
����	��
��������������	���	���
�	�
����� !�"�#$$#��%&��� !'�#$$#�()'*!#+,-.*/01��2234534647�4849�:;0.8�;!�<�;!-=��>#��%*!�<*)-&�# '�?,.�'/�@-8�A#+B#!�;.�!+�?�%?*.�!+�?C )'*!#+,-.*/D�E,�F<!��G�#� �#-H�%��#-H,�<!�26)'*!#+,-.*/D�I.�!�;1?J!$$!%�.�!*)-&�# '�?,.�'/D�F!<�@!�-#�.�%F!<*.�@)-&�# '�?,.�'/�K�LMNO�POQR��STUVWQRX��;.�Y�I.B�46Y�4647�!J�2487Z�:;�;!�<�;!-=��>#��%*!�<*)-&�# '�?,.�'/�[�.J�8\]]̂�_̀abcd]]d�ecbd̂_f�ghijh_�_d̂�kl_df�m̀�l]n�o]nî�a_pb�_�q]qbda�a]�i]]p�]jbc�arhs�cbs]inah]d�_d̂�j]abf�ar_a�t]nî�ub�vcb_aw�ghdob�arhshs�_d�bq_hi�j]ab�]d�_�e]_ĉ�kbs]inah]df�tb�thii�dbb̂�xyyz�{_cahoh{_ah]d�_d̂�_�nd_dhq]ns�j]ab|}b�thii�dbb̂�arhs�j]ab�ul�~]d̂_lf��]jbqubc��yar���e|��rhs�{c]�boa�_hqs�a]�ac_ds̀]cq�]nc�{cbsor]]i�shabs�hda]�jhuc_da�vcbbd�ib_cdhdv�]_sbsf�{c]jĥhdvorhîcbd�thar�]{{]candhahbs�a]�o]ddboa�thar�d_ancbf�̀]sabc�_�ih̀bi]dv�_{{cboh_ah]d�̀]c�arbbdjhc]dqbdaf�_d̂�bdv_vb�hd�r_d̂s�]d�ib_cdhdv�b�{bchbdobs|��rb�{c]�boa�thii�hdj]ijb�ocb_ahdv�_j_chbal�]̀�d_anc_i�{i_l�_cb_sf�{i_dahdv�acbbs�_d̂�]arbc�jbvba_ah]df�_d̂�hdo]c{]c_ahdv�snsa_hd_uibi_d̂so_{hdv�{c_oahobs|��r_dpsf~_cl~_cl�~_opbd�hb��{c]d]nds�srbf�rbcf�rbcs��sshsa_da�a]�arb����f��]qqndhal�ecĥvbs�x��~_hd�gacbbaf�}_as]djhiibf������y��������x|���|���y���y�������y�|�x�|������������x|���|��y���]qqndhalecĥvbs|]cv����_obu]]p����thaabc����hdpb̂md�����dbtsibaabc������������ �¡¢£¤�£�¥�¤���¤�¦��§ �¥��¢�̈���������©§£ £�£¥£ ��ª£ ¤���§¦¤��§£��ªª� �����������«£¦¤§��§£� �¬�««�ª��£���¦«�®� �¬¦��«���¬��£��ª �¢ ¦�¤�¡£«�¥£ ¤�£¤¤£���¦«�¤£ ¥�̈£¤̄�ª �¥�¡£¤�£°���¦±«£¦̈ £̈¤¤���� £¤�� ̈£¤̄�¦�¡�¦¡¥�̈¦�£¤�¬� �§£¦«�§�¦�¡�¡�¢�����¦̈ �¤¤�£¥£ ��¤�¦¢£��¬�«�¬£��²³́µ¶�· ¹̧º�· »̧¼½¾¿À½�ÁÂ̧ ¹ºÂÃ»Ä¹ÀÅÆ½ÇÈÉ¹ÆÊËÌÍÎ¶�ÏÐÑ¹ÇÅ̧ºÒ�ÓÉÔ½ÂÄ½¹�ÕÖÒ�×Ø×Ù�×ÚÕØ�Û·Ǘ¶�ÝÞ�ÞȨ́¹Å�Éß�àÀ¹½»áÉ¹Ç�ÁÝÞÞâàÃ»Ä¹ÀÅÆ½ÇÈÉ¹ÆÊ
36



���������	
���������������������������������� ���!�"�������#�����$���!
%��&�'�!(����)�����*�+��!,�����--!���%���./�0112�345�67889�3�:/:;4<�=><�<?/6�8>671@</7;�/;�</5>�<7�A::�<?/6�<7�<?>�A=>;:A�A<�<?>�B7A8:�C>></;=�1A6<;/=?<2�D@<�/<�EA5>�/;�F@6<�A<�<?>�>;:�7G�<?>�H78I�:A9J�K7�E7;6>L@>;<192�6/;E>�<?/6�/6�A;�>5A/1�M7<>7;�A�B7A8:�N>671@</7;2�H>�H/11�;>>:�OPPQ�RA8</E/RA</7;�A;:�A�@;A;/57@6�M7<>J�S>�H/11�;>>:<?/6�M7<>�D9�C7;:A92�T7M>5D>8�UP<?�VWBJ�X?/6�R87F>E<�A/56�<7�<8A;6G785�7@8�R8>6E?771�6/<>6�/;<7�M/D8A;<�=8>>;�1>A8;/;=�7A6>62�R87M/:/;=E?/1:8>;�H/<?�7RR78<@;/</>6�<7�E7;;>E<�H/<?�;A<@8>2�G76<>8�A�1/G>17;=�ARR8>E/A</7;�G78�<?>>;M/87;5>;<2�A;:�>;=A=>�/;�?A;:6Y7;�1>A8;/;=�>ZR>8/>;E>6J�X?>�R87F>E<�H/11�/;M71M>�E8>A</;=�AMA8/><9�7G�;A<@8A1�R1A9�A8>A62�R1A;</;=�<8>>6�A;:�7<?>8�M>=><A</7;2�A;:�/;E78R78A</;=�6@6<A/;AD1>1A;:6EAR/;=�R8AE</E>6J�X?A;I62CA89CA89�CAEI>;[/>�\R87;7@;6�6?>2�?>82�?>86]066/6<A;<�<7�<?>�V̂W2�V755@;/<9�B8/:=>6_Ò�CA/;�K<8>><2�SA<67;M/11>2�V0�̀_Pabc�d�efOJbeeJeegP�ZUPa�V�d�UPbJeÒJUgae��h�d�efOJbeeJefPU�V755@;/<9B8/:=>6J78=�d�hAE>D77I�d�XH/<<>8�d�i/;I>:3;�d�̂Y;>H61><<>8�jkllmnopq�rsotuvw�vnxowoknw�y�pzsoxonu�{kllmnopq�|zvsv�vxvsq�}vswkn�zyw�pzv�k}}kspmnopq�pkmn~vywz�pzvos��m~~�}kpvnpoy~���ms��ylo~q�k��pvn�}skusylw�tv~oxvsw�vwwvnpoy~�wvsxo{vw��}skxotvw�v�mopy�~vy{{vww�pk�svwkms{vw��ynt�ytxk{ypvw��ks�zvy~pz�ynt�tounopq�y{skww�vxvsq�wpyuv�k��~o�v���������������������������������������������� �¡� �� ������� ¢£�¤�¢¥���� ���£�����¦� �¥§������������̈�©ª�«��¥£���¬��¡��£�®̄�°ª±ª²
37



����������	
���������	���������
����	��
��������������	���	���
�	�
������ !"#$!"%&�'#!"%&(!���)*+,-�".(%/-01/��))23*23*34�)53)�617/5�1�!��1�%8#�9"#�'-�!�-+%:!"$,#;(/!,0�<=>?@A�BCD�<=E�DEFG?HEDIJ�KC<E�LEAM��1/�N�O/P�3*N�3*34��Q�)354R�61�1�!��1�%8#�9"#�'-�!�-+%:!"$,#;(/!,0�S!/Q#5TUUV�WXYZ[\UU\�][Z\VŴ�_̀ab̀W�W\V�cdW\̂�eX�dUf�gUfaV�YWhZ�W�iUiZ\Y�YU�aUUh�UbZ[�Yj̀k�[ZkUafỲU\�W\V�bUYẐ�YjWY�lUfaV�mZ�n[ZWYo�_̀\gZ�Yj̀kk̀�W\�ZiẀa�bUYZ�U\�W�]UW[V�cZkUafỲU\̂�lZ�l̀aa�\ZZV�pqqr�sW[Ỳg̀sWỲU\�W\V�W�f\W\̀iUfk�bUYZtuZ�l̀aa�\ZZV�Yj̀k�bUYZ�md�vU\VWd̂�wUbZimZ[�xqYj�yz]t�{j̀k�s[U|ZgY�Ẁik�YU�Y[W\kXU[i�Uf[�s[ZkgjUUa�k̀YZk�̀\YU�b̀m[W\Y�n[ZZ\�aZW[\̀\n�UWkZk̂�s[Ub̀V̀\ngj̀aV[Z\�l̀Yj�UssU[Yf\̀ỲZk�YU�gU\\ZgY�l̀Yj�\WYf[Ẑ�XUkYZ[�W�àXZaU\n�Wss[Zg̀WỲU\�XU[�YjZZ\b̀[U\iZ\Ŷ�W\V�Z\nWnZ�̀\�jW\Vk}U\�aZW[\̀\n�Z~sZ[̀Z\gZkt�{jZ�s[U|ZgY�l̀aa�̀\bUabZ�g[ZWỲ\n�WbW[̀ZYd�UX�\WYf[Wa�saWd�W[ZWk̂�saW\Ỳ\n�Y[ZZk�W\V�UYjZ[�bZnZYWỲU\̂�W\V�̀\gU[sU[WỲ\n�kfkYẀ\WmaZaW\VkgWs̀\n�s[WgỲgZkt�{jW\hk̂vW[dvW[d�vWghZ\�̀Z��s[U\Uf\k�kjẐ�jZ[̂�jZ[k��kk̀kYW\Y�YU�YjZ�y�ẑ�yUiif\̀Yd�][̀VnZk�p��vẀ\�_Y[ZZŶ�uWYkU\b̀aaẐ�y����q��������pt���t���q�~xq��y���xq�t�p�tx�����������pt���t��qx�yUiif\̀Yd][̀VnZktU[n����WgZmUUh���{l̀YYZ[����̀\hZVe\����}\ZlkaZYYZ[���������������������������������������� ���������¡�����������¢���������������¢¢�������������£�����������¤�££�¢�������£¥�¦���¤���£���¤�����¢����������£��������������£������ ��§�¢���������̈����©£��  ������������� ��§��������� �����¤������£���������������� ������������������¤�£�¤�¥��ª«¬®�̄°±²�̄°³́µ¶·̧µ�¹º°±²º»³¼±̧½¾µ¿ÀÁ±¾ÂÃÄÅÆ®�ÇÈÉ±¿½°²Ê�ËÁÌµº¼µ±�ÍÎÊ�ÏÐÏÑ�ÏÒÍÐ�Ó̄Ô¬®�ÕÖ�ÖÁ°±½�Á×�Ø̧±µ³ÙÁ±¿�¹ÕÖÖÚØ»³¼±̧½¾µ¿ÀÁ±¾Â
38



���������	
���������������������������������� ���!�"�������#�����$���!
%��&�'�!(����)�����*�+��!,�����--!���%���./�0112�345�67889�3�:/:;4<�=><�<?/6�8>671@</7;�/;�</5>�<7�A::�<?/6�<7�<?>�A=>;:A�A<�<?>�B7A8:�C>></;=�1A6<;/=?<2�D@<�/<�EA5>�/;�F@6<�A<�<?>�>;:�7G�<?>�H78I�:A9J�K7�E7;6>L@>;<192�6/;E>�<?/6�/6�A;�>5A/1�M7<>7;�A�B7A8:�N>671@</7;2�H>�H/11�;>>:�OPPQ�RA8</E/RA</7;�A;:�A�@;A;/57@6�M7<>J�S>�H/11�;>>:<?/6�M7<>�D9�C7;:A92�T7M>5D>8�UP<?�VWBJ�X?/6�R87F>E<�A/56�<7�<8A;6G785�7@8�R8>6E?771�6/<>6�/;<7�M/D8A;<�=8>>;�1>A8;/;=�7A6>62�R87M/:/;=E?/1:8>;�H/<?�7RR78<@;/</>6�<7�E7;;>E<�H/<?�;A<@8>2�G76<>8�A�1/G>17;=�ARR8>E/A</7;�G78�<?>>;M/87;5>;<2�A;:�>;=A=>�/;�?A;:6Y7;�1>A8;/;=�>ZR>8/>;E>6J�X?>�R87F>E<�H/11�/;M71M>�E8>A</;=�AMA8/><9�7G�;A<@8A1�R1A9�A8>A62�R1A;</;=�<8>>6�A;:�7<?>8�M>=><A</7;2�A;:�/;E78R78A</;=�6@6<A/;AD1>1A;:6EAR/;=�R8AE</E>6J�X?A;I62CA89CA89�CAEI>;[/>�\R87;7@;6�6?>2�?>82�?>86]066/6<A;<�<7�<?>�V̂W2�V755@;/<9�B8/:=>6_Ò�CA/;�K<8>><2�SA<67;M/11>2�V0�̀_Pabc�d�efOJbeeJeegP�ZUPa�V�d�UPbJeÒJUgae��h�d�efOJbeeJefPU�V755@;/<9B8/:=>6J78=�d�hAE>D77I�d�XH/<<>8�d�i/;I>:3;�d�̂Y;>H61><<>8�jkllmnopq�rsotuvw�vnxowoknw�y�pzsoxonu�{kllmnopq�|zvsv�vxvsq�}vswkn�zyw�pzv�k}}kspmnopq�pkmn~vywz�pzvos��m~~�}kpvnpoy~���ms��ylo~q�k��pvn�}skusylw�tv~oxvsw�vwwvnpoy~�wvsxo{vw��}skxotvw�v�mopy�~vy{{vww�pk�svwkms{vw��ynt�ytxk{ypvw��ks�zvy~pz�ynt�tounopq�y{skww�vxvsq�wpyuv�k��~o�v���
39



����������	
���������	���������
����	��
��������������	���	���
�	�
������ �!"# �$%�&%'"# �$%()*+' ��,-"'./$)�0012312425�6789�:!;"7�! #<�! -=$>?�$�&' #<'*-@#�)+$%,"#+.�A-7�B#$>) �C#�DD�>�&@#$>) +#�DD�>6*+' ��,-"'.E�F,�G< >�H#�$)#�-I�&$#�-I,#< >04*+' ��,-"'.E�J"# �!K%L DD &>"# '*-@#�)+$%,"#+.E�G <�A >-�>"�&G <'">A*-@#�)+$%,"#+.�M��"L$�<$%N>�!">O�J"��24O�2425� L�02759�P!�! #<�! -=$>?�$�&' #<'*-@#�)+$%,"#+.�Q#"L$7RSST�UVWXYZSSZ�[YXZTU\�]̂_̀̂U�UZT�abUZ\�cV�bSd�eSd_T�WUfX�U�gSgXZW�WS�_SSf�S̀XY�Wĥi�YXiS_dŴSZ�UZT�̀SWX\�WhUW�jSd_T�kX�lYXUWm�]̂ZeX�Wĥiî�UZ�XgÛ_�̀SWX�SZ�U�[SUYT�aXiS_dŴSZ\�jX�ĵ__�ZXXT�noop�qUYŴêqUŴSZ�UZT�U�dZUẐgSdi�̀SWXrsX�ĵ__�ZXXT�Wĥi�̀SWX�kb�tSZTUb\�uS̀XgkXY�voWh�wx[r�yĥi�qYSzXeW�Ûgi�WS�WYUZiVSYg�SdY�qYXiehSS_�îWXi�̂ZWS�̀̂kYUZW�lYXXZ�_XUYẐZl�SUiXi\�qYS̀ T̂̂Zleĥ_TYXZ�ĵWh�SqqSYWdẐŴXi�WS�eSZZXeW�ĵWh�ZUWdYX\�VSiWXY�U�_̂VX_SZl�UqqYXêUŴSZ�VSY�WhXXZ̀ ŶSZgXZW\�UZT�XZlUlX�̂Z�hUZTi{SZ�_XUYẐZl�X|qXŶXZeXir�yhX�qYSzXeW�ĵ__�̂Z̀S_̀X�eYXUŴZl�UÙŶXWb�SV�ZUWdYU_�q_Ub�UYXUi\�q_UZŴZl�WYXXi�UZT�SWhXY�̀XlXWUŴSZ\�UZT�̂ZeSYqSYUŴZl�idiWÛZUk_X_UZTieUq̂Zl�qYUeŴeXir�yhUZfi\tUYbtUYb�tUefXZ}̂X�~qYSZSdZi�ihX\�hXY\�hXYi��iîiWUZW�WS�WhX�w�x\�wSggdẐWb�[ŶTlXi�n��tÛZ�]WYXXW\�sUWiSZ̀ _̂_X\�w����o��������nr���r���o�|vo��w���vo�r�n�rv�����������nr���r��ov�wSggdẐWb[ŶTlXirSYl����UeXkSSf���yĵWWXY����̂ZfXTcZ����{ZXji_XWWXY�������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������  �������������¡�����������¢�¡¡� �������¡£�¤���¢���¡���¢����� ����������¡��������������¡���������¥� ���������¦����§¡��������������������¥���������������¢������¡�����������������������������������¢�¡�¢�£��̈©ª«¬�®̄°�®±²³́µ¶³�·̧ ®̄°̧ ¹±º̄¶»¼³½¾¿̄¼ÀÁÂÃÄ¬�ÅÆÇ̄½»®°È�É¿Ê³̧ º³̄�ËÌÈ�ÍÎÍÏ�ÍÐËÎ�ÑÒª¬�ÓÔ�Ô¿®̄»�¿Õ�Ö¶̄³±×¿̄½�·ÓÔÔØÖ¹±º̄¶»¼³½¾¿̄¼À
40



���������	
���������������������������������� ���!�"�������#�����$���!
%��&�'�!(����)�����*�+��!,�����--!���%���./�0112�345�67889�3�:/:;4<�=><�<?/6�8>671@</7;�/;�</5>�<7�A::�<?/6�<7�<?>�A=>;:A�A<�<?>�B7A8:�C>></;=�1A6<;/=?<2�D@<�/<�EA5>�/;�F@6<�A<�<?>�>;:�7G�<?>�H78I�:A9J�K7�E7;6>L@>;<192�6/;E>�<?/6�/6�A;�>5A/1�M7<>7;�A�B7A8:�N>671@</7;2�H>�H/11�;>>:�OPPQ�RA8</E/RA</7;�A;:�A�@;A;/57@6�M7<>J�S>�H/11�;>>:<?/6�M7<>�D9�C7;:A92�T7M>5D>8�UP<?�VWBJ�X?/6�R87F>E<�A/56�<7�<8A;6G785�7@8�R8>6E?771�6/<>6�/;<7�M/D8A;<�=8>>;�1>A8;/;=�7A6>62�R87M/:/;=E?/1:8>;�H/<?�7RR78<@;/</>6�<7�E7;;>E<�H/<?�;A<@8>2�G76<>8�A�1/G>17;=�ARR8>E/A</7;�G78�<?>>;M/87;5>;<2�A;:�>;=A=>�/;�?A;:6Y7;�1>A8;/;=�>ZR>8/>;E>6J�X?>�R87F>E<�H/11�/;M71M>�E8>A</;=�AMA8/><9�7G�;A<@8A1�R1A9�A8>A62�R1A;</;=�<8>>6�A;:�7<?>8�M>=><A</7;2�A;:�/;E78R78A</;=�6@6<A/;AD1>1A;:6EAR/;=�R8AE</E>6J�X?A;I62CA89CA89�CAEI>;[/>�\R87;7@;6�6?>2�?>82�?>86]066/6<A;<�<7�<?>�V̂W2�V755@;/<9�B8/:=>6_Ò�CA/;�K<8>><2�SA<67;M/11>2�V0�̀_Pabc�d�efOJbeeJeegP�ZUPa�V�d�UPbJeÒJUgae��h�d�efOJbeeJefPU�V755@;/<9B8/:=>6J78=�d�hAE>D77I�d�XH/<<>8�d�i/;I>:3;�d�̂Y;>H61><<>8�jkllmnopq�rsotuvw�vnxowoknw�y�pzsoxonu�{kllmnopq�|zvsv�vxvsq�}vswkn�zyw�pzv�k}}kspmnopq�pkmn~vywz�pzvos��m~~�}kpvnpoy~���ms��ylo~q�k��pvn�}skusylw�tv~oxvsw�vwwvnpoy~�wvsxo{vw��}skxotvw�v�mopy�~vy{{vww�pk�svwkms{vw��ynt�ytxk{ypvw��ks�zvy~pz�ynt�tounopq�y{skww�vxvsq�wpyuv�k��~o�v���
41



���������	�

�
������	������������������������������ !"#$%&�'$(!"#�)*!"#$%&($(+,-./*$!&0"1*23#4�5565+6-7-8�+9,+�: 319� $;<� $"=%>?!%�)*$;<*."(;!@/%A01;/2�B�C1D%�<%A0 !"#$%&�'$(!"#E>�F%@G�H1C�5,G�-7-8�$D�5-975�: � $;<� $"=%>?!%�)*$;<*."(;!@/%A01;/2�I;1D%9JK�LMMN�OMPQRP�SKTU�QT�VWUQXPU�YPZVMQ[�\PRRK]T�LZPTUQ�OQ̂_PX�̀][�X]TKZaXbR�cPPXKTZd�RXQ[XKTZ�QXQWW[]eKcQXPMf�ghiiWcd�jaKR�kKMM�lf�Q�JmnYop�oTqOP[R]T�KT�XaP�nKZ�nK[U�Y]]c�rs]XP�XaP�M]̂QXK]TâQTZPt�QTU�u]]c�cPPXKTZd�pKTTP[�kKMM�lP�W[]vKUPU�̀][�Xa]RP�QXXPTUKTZ�KT�WP[R]TdLTU�w]]c�MKT_hu]]ch�aXXWRhxxVRiykPldw]]cdVRxzxg{|}~|~}�jaQT_RN�Q[f�Q[f��Q̂_PTwKP�rW[]T]VTR�RaPN�aP[N�aP[RtLRRKRXQTX�X]�XaP����N��]ccVTKXf�n[KUZPR�{}��QKT�\X[PPXN��QXR]TvKMMPN��L�}�i~gO����|{dg��d���i�eyi~�����yigd�{}dy�~��������|{dg��d�|iy��]ccVTKXfn[KUZPRd][Z����Q̂Pl]]_���jkKXXP[����KT_PUoT����qTPkRMPXXP[����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �¡�����������������������������������������������������¢�����������£����¤���������������������¢���������������������������������������������������������������� ��¥¦§̈ ©�ª«¬�ª«®̄°±²³°�́µ«¬µ¶®·¬³̧¹°º»¼¬¹½¾¿ÀÁ©�ª¼±̧«Â�Ã¼Ä°µ·°¬�ÅÆÂ�ÇÈÇÆ�ÆÉÊÆ�ËªÌ§©�ÍÎ�Î¼«¬̧�¼Ï�Ð³¬°®Ñ¼¬º�́ÍÎÎÒÐ¶®·¬³̧¹°º»¼¬¹½ÓÔ©�ª«±«¹°µ°±Ñ�Õ°«µ�́µÑ¶®·¬³̧¹°º»¼¬¹½¾Ö×Ø¿ÔÁ©�Ù°É�ÅÅÚÅÛÚÇÆ�ÎÒÐ�Ù°¹ÜÝ«¬�Þ°ºº³¼±�ß¹°±̧«�Ë«®̄°Ñ
42



����������	
��
�������	������������
������������	�����	�����	�������
�����������������
���
����
��������������	� ��!"!#����	��
��������	�$��������%&""��'�(����)���������*�+,��,
-.�	��
��
�����������	�+����/����������������
����
��0��
��1���������
�'���

�	�)��������	���������	����������
��
���
���	��
'�1���&������&22��"!)��'3���'��242%�#56#65 (��
���7�	�7�	��7����
3���/�	�
��
���������	����	�08������
���������9:���9����
�����	����� �5�7��
�;�	����������
�������98�5 "6%.�<�=#�'%=='==>"�$!"6�9�<�!"%'=�5'!>6=��?�<�=#�'%=='=#"!�9����
����	�����'�	��<�?��������<�()����	�<�@�
���,
�<�:-
�)������	�ABCCDEFGH�IJFKLMN�MEOFNFBEN�P�GQJFOFEL�RBCCDEFGH�SQMJM�MOMJH�TMJNBE�QPN�GQM�BTTBJGDEFGH�GBDEUMPNQ�GQMFJ�VDUU�TBGMEGFPUW�XDJ�VPCFUH�BV�GME�TJBLJPCN�KMUFOMJN�MNNMEGFPU�NMJOFRMNY�TJBOFKMN�MZDFGP[UMPRRMNN�GB�JMNBDJRMNY�PEK�PKOBRPGMN�VBJ�QMPUGQ�PEK�KFLEFGH�PRJBNN�MOMJH�NGPLM�BV�UFVMW��

43



RESOLUTION 

NOTE:  DO NOT CHANGE THE FORMAT OR VERBIAGE IN THIS RESOLUTION FORMAT WITHOUT WRITTEN 
APPROVAL OF CAL FIRE STAFF. 

Resolution No.:  2023-11-02 

RESOLUTION OF THE______Board of Directors_______________ OF _________Community Bridges_______ 
  (Title of Governing Body)   (City/County/District/nonprofit) 

FOR FUNDING FROM THE URBAN AND COMMUNITY FORESTRY GRANT PROGRAM OF THE CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION.  

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of California in cooperation with the State Legislature has appropriated General 
Funds for the state’s urban forestry programs; and 

WHEREAS, the State Department of Forestry and Fire Protection has been delegated the responsibility for the 
administration of the program within the State, setting up necessary procedures governing application by local agencies 
and non-profit organizations under the program, and 

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection require the applicant to certify 
by resolution the approval of application before submission of said application to the State; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant will enter an agreement with the State of California to carry out an urban forestry project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the ____Board of Directors________: 
(Title of Governing Body)  

1. Approved the filing of an application for the Urban and Community Forestry grant program funds; and

2. Certifies that said applicant has or will have sufficient funds to operate and maintain the project; and,

3. Certifies that funds under the jurisdiction of ____Board of Directors______are available to begin the project.
 (Title of Governing Body) 

4. Certifies that said applicant will expend grant funds prior to March 30, 2026.

5. Appoints Chief Executive Officer, or a designee, as agent of the Board of Directors to conduct negotiations,
(Position Title)                                                                            (Title of Governing Body)

execute and submit all documents including, but not limited to applications, agreements, amendments, payment
requests and so on, which may be necessary for the completion of the afore mentioned project.

Approved and adopted the ____29____day of November, 2023. 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution, number 2023-11-02, was duly adopted by the following 

roll call vote of the Community Bridges Board of Directors. 
(City Council/Board of Supervisor/Board of Directors) 

Ayes: __10___   Noes: ___0____    Absent: ___0____        ____________________________________(Clerk signature)  

44



���������	�
		�	���������	����������������������������� �!��"#�$%&�#'�&��()*(+*),)-�(,.)/�0�1&.�23�3&��"�&4�5����6&�$��23375 �!��"#�$%&�#'�2�.�8&����9$6�44����&��� �!��"#�$%&�#'�(��66��:���6$�;)+�<3=2>?20@?A�$&B96�&�?237%"&�CDEF�GHHI�JK�LKKM�N�OPNQM�RPSK�PL�N�QKTPHUSFPL�VPQ�N�WGXY�ZQNLS[�\FL]K�ŜFT�FT�N�K_NFH�RPSKI�FS�̀FHH�LKKM�SPN̂RK�abbc�dNQSF]FdNSFPL�NLM�abbc�NddQPRNH[�JK�̀FHH�LKKM�ŜFT�RPSK�Oe�JKMLKTMNeI�fK]K_OKQ�gbIWhY[�WY�TUO_FSSKM�NL�i_dHK_KLSNSFPL�PQ�jHNLLFLZ�NLM�WNdN]FSe�YUFHMFLZ�kQNLS�jQPdPTNH�PL�GdQFH�glIgbgmI�VPQ�ŜK�WP__ULFSe�GFQ�kQNLST�nWGko�jQPZQN_[�p̂K�dQPdPTNH�TUO_FSSKM�̀NT�VPQ�XKMU]FLZ�GFQjPHHUSFPL�NLM�qrdPTUQK�SP�ENQ_VUH�q_FTTFPLT�FL�PUQ�]P__ULFSe[�p̂NLsTItNQe�tNQe�tN]sKLuFK�ndQPLPULT�T̂KI�̂KQI�̂KQToGTTFTSNLS�SP�ŜK�WqhI�WP__ULFSe�YQFMZKTvaw�tNFL�\SQKKSI�JNSTPLRFHHKI�WG�wvbxyj�z�{ma[y{{[{{lb�rgbx�W�z�gby[{aw[glx{��|�z�{ma[y{{[{mbg�WP__ULFSeYQFMZKT[PQZ�z�|N]KOPPs�z�p̀ FSSKQ�z�}FLsKMiL�z�q~LK̀THKSSKQ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
45



��������	��
��������������������������������������� !�"��� !#����$%&'(��)# *(+,-��$./$0/.%.1�02%3�45,*2�5����5� 6��7���"(���(& 8���'�9#*�'+�:;�<=>?�@�A�BCDE�FEGH�I=BE�=�J>E=D�K;LDE>�ICM;N=?O�PPPPPPPPPP��*�Q������(�99�'��PPPPPPPPP��*(2�RSTU�RSTVWXVY�"Z� 6Z� *89*�& 9# *(+[�\�2�5*�]�[� �$̂]�.%.1��\�021%�_5-̀8Z� \2���2�a*����b*\��c������P�d4�a���9*)-\�*�,*2�5����5� 6��7���"(���(& 8���'�9#*�'+d 2�da�a*����*e�[��� \*�9�"daaf[& 8���'�9#*�'+]�c*���5-9\�ee��"�*��(& 8���'�9#*�'+g�h*\����9�*��\!��d4�a�'���\�i�*i*9�)#�̀�\�e�*(�(���_!*��f��[� �$̂]�.%.1]��\�$%2.0�45]�5����5� 6��7���"(���(& 8���'�9#*�'+�Q�*\�2jk�lmmn�op�qppr�s�tusvr�wuxp�uq�s�vpyumzxkuq�{uv�s�|l}~��vsqx���kq�p�x�ky�ky�s�p�skm�wuxpn�kx��kmmqppr�xu��swp�������svxk�k�sxkuq�sqr������s��vuwsm��op��kmm�qppr�x�ky�wuxpt��oprqpyrs�n��p�p�tpv���n�|�~��|~�yzt�kxxpr�sq����mp�pqxsxkuq�uv��msqqkq��sqr�|s�s�kx��~zkmrkq���vsqx��vu�uysm�uql�vkm���n�����n�{uv�x�p�|u��zqkx��lkv��vsqxy��|l����vu�vs�����p��vu�uysmyzt�kxxpr��sy�{uv�}prz�kq��lkv��ummzxkuq�sqr����uyzvp�xu�jsv�{zm���kyykuqy�kq�uzv�u��zqkx�����sq�yn�sv���sv���s��pq�kp���vuquzqy�y�pn��pvn��pvy�lyykyxsqx�xu�x�p�|��n�|u��zqkx��~vkr�py�����skq��xvppxn�osxyuqwkmmpn�|l���������� ����  �  ��������|������� ������ ��¡��� ����  � ����
46



���������	
������
�������������������
���������������������
���  !"#$%�&'#()*+�*",#+#�"+�-�$.'#,#")�/�  !"#$%�0.*'*�*,*'%�1*'+�"�.-+�$.*�11�'$!"#$%�$��!"2*-+.�$.*#'�3!22�1�$*"$#-24�5!'�3- #2%��3�$*"�1'�)'- +�(*2#,*'+�*++*"$#-2+*',#/*+6�1'�,#(*+�*7!#$-82*�-//*++�$��'*+�!'/*+6�-"(�-(,�/-$*+�3�'�.*-2$.�-"(�(#)"#$%-/'�++�*,*'%�+$-)*��3�2#3*4��9:;<:=><?@ABCDEFBG<:HIJKBLMN

47



��������	�
�������	�	���������������������������������� ����!"#��$����!%�"&'���()*(+*),)-�((.-/���'�.�0 %��0 %�12�3��� %�� %�12�3#%2!%�"&4�� �5�� %��367���" �5"#%1�789�2!��9&�:%.�:;�;� �8��<�=7��%$��2��:;;>=#%1�789�2!��9&4�?�� ���2$ << ��3�� "#%1�789�2!��9&�@�ABCD�EFG�BH�CID�JKLM�LDNBOPQBHR�SITHU�VBPR
WXYZ[�\T]U�\T]B̂NBH�_̀T]ÙT]B̂NBHa]NR]Bbcdefg[�hBHiTVj�kD]Db̂ Dl�mnj�opoq�rsqp�thuY[�hTlV�hT]UDHvwD�_bTlVba]̂lwixDNRBlxcyz[�JM�MBTli�B{�kwlD]CBlN�_JMM|ka]̂lwixDNRBlxc}�~BlT�hPNCT�T�_HBlTba]̂lwixDNRBlxcd���ezg[�LDs�MBTli��BCD�~DDiDi���JKLM�LDNBOPQBH�����$��5�2��3�$���:��;�9� 3$������2 �!��3$�<��"�"5�7���3�>3�=�%�(���),)-�� $�(,.)+������ �5�� %��367���" �5"#%1�789�2!��9&����$�.��������������������������������������������������� �¡¢�£����¤�¥��¦���§���������̈ �������������©�����������§����ª««¬�����¦�����������ª««¬�������¤����©����������§��������®���������®��̄�¦�̈ ����°«�� ±¢¤� ¢����̈ ���������²̈��̈ ������������³������£����� ��¦��®�¢������£�́�����³��������������°µ��°«°¶�������§�� �̈ �̈���®�����́������· �́ �̧³��£��̈ ¤�¹§�����������̈ ������©�������¡���¦��£�����³�������������º»������������̈����º̈ ��������������¦�̈ �̈���®¤�¹§��¼��½��®�½��®�½�¦¼��¾���·���������§���§����§���̧��������������§�� º±�� �̈ �̈���®�¢���£��¿ªÀ�½����¥�������������������� ��À¿«ÁÂ³�Ã�Ä¶ª¤ÂÄÄ¤ÄÄµ«�»°«Á� �Ã�°«Â¤ÄªÀ¤°µÁÄ��Å�Ã�Ä¶ª¤ÂÄÄ¤Ä¶«°� 48



���������	
������
�������������������
���������������������
���  !"#$%�&'#()*+�*",#+#�"+�-�$.'#,#")�/�  !"#$%�0.*'*�*,*'%�1*'+�"�.-+�$.*�11�'$!"#$%�$��!"2*-+.�$.*#'�3!22�1�$*"$#-24�5!'�3- #2%��3�$*"�1'�)'- +�(*2#,*'+�*++*"$#-2+*',#/*+6�1'�,#(*+�*7!#$-82*�-//*++�$��'*+�!'/*+6�-"(�-(,�/-$*+�3�'�.*-2$.�-"(�(#)"#$%-/'�++�*,*'%�+$-)*��3�2#3*4��9:;<:=><?@ABCDEFBG<:HIJKBLMN

49



��������	�
�������	�	��������������������������������������� ������!" #��$%&'#()*+�,-.-,.-/-0�-1,2�34)'1�4��5�4�&6��7����#��5#"&���� �8%'� (�9�:;<=�>=?@��ABCDE?@F��4'�G�H�&�,2G�-/-0��I�,/1-J�K4�4��5�4�&6��7����#��5#"&���� �8%'� (�L�'I�1MN�OPPQ�RS�TSSU�V�WXVYU�ZX[S�XT�V�YS\XP][NXT�̂XY�V�_Òa�bYVT[c�dNTeS�[fN\�N\�V�SgVNP�ZX[SQ�N[�hNPP�TSSU�[XfVZS�ijjk�lVY[NeNlV[NXT�VTU�ijjk�VllYXZVPc�RS�hNPP�TSSU�[fN\�ZX[S�Wm�RSUTS\UVmQ�nSeSgWSYojQ�_pac�_a�\]WgN[[SU�VT�qglPSgST[V[NXT�XY�rPVTTNTb�VTU�_VlVeN[m�a]NPUNTb�sYVT[�rYXlX\VP�XT�OlYNP�otQojouQ�̂XY�[fS�_Xgg]TN[m�ONY�sYVT[\�v_Osw�rYXbYVgc�xfS�lYXlX\VP�\]WgN[[SU�hV\�̂XY�̀SU]eNTbONY�rXPP][NXT�VTU�yzlX\]YS�[X�MVYĝ]P�ygN\\NXT\�NT�X]Y�eXgg]TN[mc�xfVT{\Q|VYm�|VYm�|Ve{ST}NS�vlYXTX]T\�\fSQ�fSYQ�fSY\wO\\N\[VT[�[X�[fS�_ypQ�_Xgg]TN[m�aYNUbS\~i��|VNT�d[YSS[Q�RV[\XTZNPPSQ�_O��~j��r����uic���c��tj�zoj��_���oj�c�i�cot���������uic���c�ujo�_Xgg]TN[maYNUbS\cXYb����VeSWXX{���xhN[[SY����NT{SUqT���y�TSh\PS[[SY������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����¡�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������¢¢£¤=D¥C�¦@�§¤̈©©̈Dª«��I*�5��'�¬I� ���5'+���8��I��I�I*��I��$�G����� ����'$��� �&*���®����������¢�̄�°%�±*��$�5�²*�8*'$#�³H¢́%µ%¶
50



��������	�
�������	�	����������������������������������������������� ��!"#���$%&$'&%(%)�*+)$�,#-�+�#�./�#���0�120��!�./!���.2340� �.4"�5�+�56�6��.3��7�82.0�9�.���566:8���.2340� �.4";�<�.��#=�9�77�����.�!���.2340� �.4"�>�?�90�/0�����9@0�5AB6�4.��9�C.�C���D E0�9�7.�!�!/�2,@��0:��80��$'F�%(%)F��9�$(+%*�A#F�#�./�#���0�120��!�./!���.2340� �.4"�G.�90+HI�JKKL�MN�ONNP�Q�RSQTP�USVN�SO�Q�TNWSKXVISO�YST�Q�ZJ[\�]TQOV̂�_IÒN�VaIW�IW�Q�NbQIK�USVNL�IV�cIKKONNP�VS�aQUN�deef�gQTVÌIgQVISO�QOP�deef�QggTSUQK̂�MN�cIKK�ONNP�VaIW�USVNRh�MNPONWPQhL�iǸNbRNT�jeL�Zk\̂�Z\�WXRbIVVNP�QO�lbgKNbNOVQVISO�ST�mKQOOIO]�QOP�ZQgQ̀IVh�\XIKPIO]�nTQOV�mTSgSWQK�SOJgTIK�joL�jejpL�YST�VaN�ZSbbXOIVh�JIT�nTQOVW�qZJnr�mTS]TQb̂�saN�gTSgSWQKWXRbIVVNP�cQW�YST�[NPX̀IO]�JIT�mSKKXVISO�QOP�tugSWXTN�VS�HQTbYXK�tbIWWISOW�IO�SXTS̀bbXOIVĥ�saQOvWLwQTh�wQTh�wQ̀vNOxIN�qgTSOSXOW�WaNL�aNTL�aNTWrJWWIWVQOV�VS�VaN�ZtkL�ZSbbXOIVh�\TIP]NWydz�wQIO�_VTNNVL�MQVWSOUIKKNL�ZJ�zye{|m�}�~pd̂|~~̂~~oe�uje{�Z�}�je|̂~dẑjo{~����}�~pd̂|~~̂~pej�ZSbbXOIVh\TIP]NŴST]�}��Q̀NRSSv�}�scIVVNT�}��IOvNPlO�}�t�ONcWKNVVNT�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
51



����������	
���
�������
���

52



��������	�
�������	�	������������������������������������������� !"#$����%�&�'�&(�)"*)+*","-�".,!�/�0&.���12����3�(4������12�#��1�5$�6%&1$'�7�.�7���&�15�&8�9�1��:&16��7��;9#��1�5$�6%&1$'<�=&1���>6:�88���(&1��#��1�5$�6%&1$'�?�@&:��2�6%�;(��&(A�9���)+A�","-A�),."B�C����12����3�(4������12�#��1�5$�6%&1$'�D1&:�.EF�GHHI�JK�LKKM�N�OPNQM�RPSK�PL�N�QKTPHUSFPL�VPQ�N�WGXY�ZQNLS[�\FL]K�ŜFT�FT�N�K_NFH�RPSKI�FS�̀FHH�LKKM�SPN̂RK�abbc�dNQSF]FdNSFPL�NLM�abbc�NddQPRNH[�JK�̀FHH�LKKM�ŜFT�RPSK�Oe�JKMLKTMNeI�fK]K_OKQgbI�WhY[�WY�TUO_FSSKM�NL�i_dHK_KLSNSFPL�PQ�jHNLLFLZ�NLM�WNdN]FSe�YUFHMFLZ�kQNLS�jQPdPTNH�PL�GdQFH�glIgbgmI�VPQ�ŜK�WP__ULFSe�GFQ�kQNLST�nWGko�jQPZQN_[�p̂K�dQPdPTNH�TUO_FSSKM�̀NT�VPQ�XKMU]FLZGFQ�jPHHUSFPL�NLM�qrdPTUQK�SP�ENQ_VUH�q_FTTFPLT�FL�PUQ�]P__ULFSe[�p̂NLsTItNQe�tNQe�tN]sKLuFK�ndQPLPULT�T̂KI�̂KQI�̂KQToGTTFTSNLS�SP�ŜK�WqhI�WP__ULFSe�YQFMZKTvaw�tNFL�\SQKKSI�JNSTPLRFHHKI�WG�wvbxyj�z�{ma[y{{[{{lb�rgbx�W�z�gby[{aw[glx{��|�z�{ma[y{{[{mbg�WP__ULFSeYQFMZKT[PQZ�z�|N]KOPPs�z�p̀ FSSKQ�z�}FLsKMiL�z�q~LK̀THKSSKQ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
53



��������	�
�������	�	���������������������������������������� �!"#����$�%�&�%���'(�!(')'*�+,*-�.�/%,���������01�2�1�������"�3��4#15$%�#&�67��%8�51���9%:1��15;�������������6���%�<�=1���!<�')'*��:��),' �>����������01�2�1�������"�3��4#15$%�#&�?�%:1,@A�BCCD�EF�GFFH�I�JKILH�MKNF�KG�I�LFOKCPNAKG�QKL�I�RBST�ULIGNV�WAGXF�NYAO�AO�I�FZIAC�MKNFD�AN�[ACC�GFFH�NKYIMF�\]]̂ �_ILNAXA_INAKG�IGH�\]]̂ �I__LKMICV�EF�[ACC�GFFH�NYAO�MKNF�J̀�EFHGFOHÌD�aFXFZJFLb]D�RcTV�RT�OPJZANNFH�IG�dZ_CFZFGNINAKG�KL�eCIGGAGU�IGH�RI_IXAǸ�TPACHAGU�fLIGN�eLK_KOIC�KG�B_LAC�bgDb]bhD�QKL�NYF�RKZZPGAǸ�BAL�fLIGNO�iRBfj�eLKULIZV�kYF�_LK_KOIC�OPJZANNFH�[IO�QKL�SFHPXAGUBAL�eKCCPNAKG�IGH�lm_KOPLF�NK�@ILZQPC�lZAOOAKGO�AG�KPL�XKZZPGAǸV�kYIGnODoIL̀�oIL̀�oIXnFGpAF�i_LKGKPGO�OYFD�YFLD�YFLOjBOOAONIGN�NK�NYF�RlcD�RKZZPGAǸ�TLAHUFOq\r�oIAG�WNLFFND�EINOKGMACCFD�RB�rq]ste�u�vh\VtvvVvvg]�mb]s�R�u�b]tVv\rVbgsv��w�u�vh\VtvvVvh]b�RKZZPGAǸTLAHUFOVKLU�u�wIXFJKKn�u�k[ANNFL�u�xAGnFHdG�u�lyGF[OCFNNFL�z{||}~�������������~����{~����������~���{||}~��������������������{~���������{��{��}~�����{}~�������������}����{��~�������}����|����{����~���{���|���������������~�����������������{��������}��������������{����{}�������~�����{�������{����������~�����~�������{���������������{���������
54



��������	�
�������	�	���������������������������������� ����������!"#���$�%#&'�(�)*+),+*-*.�/01)�23'%0�4����4��%�5% ��6���6��%�5% !�5$�%#&���0�3�78�3���( 9�(��#�78#!��7�:"(5$%7"&;��<�<%�7:�%=�>�7(�?%75���<<@>!��7�:"(5$%7"&;��%7��3�5?�==�� %7�#!��7�:"(5$%7"&�A(5$�����B( ?�=7%#�#8��CD% (@ �>(��)EF�*-*.F��?�,0.-�C3F�4����4��%�5% ��6���6��%�5% !�5$�%#&�G7%?(0�H�I%?(�8(5�% �?D(��2J<�"7� ?�K7%K%5��$B( ?�=7%#�#8��CD% (@ �>(��)EF�*-*.F��?�)-0*,�23F�3�78�3���( 9�(��#�78#!��7�:"(5$%7"&G7%?(0LM�NOOP�QR�SRRT�U�VWUXT�YWZR�WS�U�XR[WO\ZMWS�]WX�U�̂N_̀�aXUSZb�cMSdR�ZeM[�M[�URfUMO�YWZRP�MZ�gMOO�SRRT�ZW�eUYR�hiij�kUXZMdMkUZMWS�UST�hiij�UkkXWYUOb�QRgMOO�SRRT�ZeM[�YWZR�Vl�QRTSR[TUlP�mRdRfVRX�niP�̂ò b�^̀�[\VfMZZRT�US�pfkORfRSZUZMWS�WX�qOUSSMSa�UST�̂UkUdMZl\̀MOTMSa�rXUSZ�qXWkW[UO�WS�NkXMO�nsP�nintP�]WX�ZeR�̂Wff\SMZl�NMX�rXUSZ[ûNrv�qXWaXUfb�weR�kXWkW[UO�[\VfMZZRT�gU[�]WX�_RT\dMSa�NMX�qWOO\ZMWSUST�xykW[\XR�ZW�LUXf]\O�xfM[[MWS[�MS�W\X�dWff\SMZlb�weUSz[P{UXl�{UXl�{UdzRS|MR�ukXWSW\S[�[eRP�eRXP�eRX[vN[[M[ZUSZ�ZW�ZeR�̂xoP�̂Wff\SMZl�̀XMTaR[}h~�{UMS�cZXRRZP�QUZ[WSYMOORP�̂N�~}i��q����thb���b��si�yni��̂���ni�b�h~bns���������thb���b�tin�̂Wff\SMZl̀XMTaR[bWXa����UdRVWWz���wgMZZRX����MSzRTpS���x�SRg[ORZZRX
55



���������	�
����������������������������������	�����������	�������������������������	�������������������������������������������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	������������	������������������� �!" #$%&'()*&+ �,-./&012

56



��������	�
�������	�	���������������������������������� ������!"#$ ���%&� '()��*+,*-,+.+/�**0+-�1�(�0����2���&3�45���� ��2 #&6��"$��%��$'�7���8��2��94���4:�;�&�*<:�+.+/��8�*.0+-�1�����2���&3�45���� ��2 #&6��"$��%��$'�=��8�0>?�@AAB�CD�EDDF�G�HIGJF�KILD�IE�G�JDMIANL?IE�OIJ�G�P@QR�SJGELT�U?EVD�LW?M�?M�G�DXG?A�KILDB�?L�Y?AA�EDDF�LIWGKD�Z[[\�]GJL?V?]GL?IE�GEF�Z[[\�G]]JIKGAT�CD�Y?AA�EDDF�LW?M�KILD�Ĥ�CDFEDMFĜB�_DVDXHDJ[̀B�PaRT�PR�MNHX?LLDF�GE�bX]ADXDELGL?IE�IJ�cAGEE?ES�GEF�PG]GV?L̂�RN?AF?ES�dJGEL�cJI]IMGA�IE�@]J?A�̀eB[̀̀fB�OIJ�LWD�PIXXNE?L̂�@?J�dJGELM�gP@dh�cJISJGXT�iWD�]JI]IMGA�MNHX?LLDF�YGM�OIJ�QDFNV?ES@?J�cIAANL?IE�GEF�jk]IMNJD�LI�>GJXONA�jX?MM?IEM�?E�INJ�VIXXNE?L̂T�iWGElMBmGĴ�mGĴ�mGVlDEn?D�g]JIEINEM�MWDB�WDJB�WDJMh@MM?MLGEL�LI�LWD�PjaB�PIXXNE?L̂�RJ?FSDMoZp�mG?E�ULJDDLB�CGLMIEK?AADB�P@�po[qrc�s�tfZTrttTtte[�k̀[q�P�s�̀[rTtZpT̀eqt��u�s�tfZTrttTtf[̀�PIXXNE?L̂RJ?FSDMTIJS�s�uGVDHIIl�s�iY?LLDJ�s�v?ElDFbE�s�jwEDYMADLLDJ�xyzz{|}~����}������|�}�}y|����~��}�}|���yzz{|}~������������������y|�����~���y��y�~{|}~��~y{|������~��}���{����y~�|~}�����{����z}���y��~�|���y���z�����}���������|~}�������}�������y�}������{}~�����������~y����y{�������|�����y��~����y������~���|���}�|}~�����y����������~����y���}�����
57



��������	�
������	�	������������������������������� �!���������"��� #$%�&'(  &"'()*+�$�,-.-/.-/-0�-1-/�234(1�3�%5�3�'6��7���!)�%5)#'8%�$9�&"(%9*:�;<�<(�%$�(=�>�%�'�(%&�!;<<?>#'8%�$9�&"(%9*�;'1�@(%��3�&��==��!�(%�)#'8%�$9�&"(%9*�A�BCDE�FEGH�IJKL�MENOMLGP�QRSTUVWXS�YZU[\]̂_̀abĉ�dbebfghijj�k f̂albmn̂�olbĉkeafghcbpp̂q��rs�tujvw�x�yz�{|iz}�vwi~uz�w���yz�{|iz}��u�~i�tv��������OMF��O��EK�JE���OMF����MJLNEGHCMN��������CKLOFP��E�E��EM���P����������������������COML�C ��JME�DCMG�����¡����MJLNEGHCMN�¢£��¤CMO��¥GDO¦O��KCMO����MJLNEGHCMN��§̈©�£���ª«¬®��COML�̄CDE�¤EELEL�°���±��±EGC²¥³CK�́µ���¶�£���·JŅ�̧E�E°�OJ²��E²C¹�JG� MC��OK�EºDEMKO²�GC¥M�EH�»²EOGE�LC�KCD�C¼EK�O½O�̧�EKDG�CM��²J���²JK�G� MC��OK�¥K�KC¹K�CMG¥G¼J�JC¥G�CMJNJKH¾¿�ÀÁÁÂ��ÃÄ�ÅÄÄÆ�Ç�ÈÉÇÊÆ�ËÉÌÄ�ÉÅ�Ç�ÊÄÍÉÁÎÌ¿ÉÅ�ÏÉÊ�Ç�ÐÀÑÒ�ÓÊÇÅÌÔ�Õ¿ÅÖÄ�Ì×¿Í�¿Í�Ç�ÄØÇ¿Á�ËÉÌÄÂ�¿Ì�Ù¿ÁÁ�ÅÄÄÆ�ÌÉ×ÇËÄ�ÚÛÛÜ�ÝÇÊÌ¿Ö¿ÝÇÌ¿ÉÅ�ÇÅÆ�ÚÛÛÜ�ÇÝÝÊÉËÇÁÔ�ÃÄ�Ù¿ÁÁ�ÅÄÄÆ�Ì×¿Í�ËÉÌÄ�ÈÞ�ÃÄÆÅÄÍÆÇÞÂ�ßÄÖÄØÈÄÊ�àÛÂÐáÒÔ��ÐÒ�ÍÎÈØ¿ÌÌÄÆ�ÇÅ�âØÝÁÄØÄÅÌÇÌ¿ÉÅ�ÉÊ�ãÁÇÅÅ¿ÅÓ�ÇÅÆ�ÐÇÝÇÖ¿ÌÞ�ÒÎ¿ÁÆ¿ÅÓ�äÊÇÅÌ�ãÊÉÝÉÍÇÁ�ÉÅ�ÀÝÊ¿Á�àåÂàÛàæÂ�ÏÉÊ�Ì×Ä�ÐÉØØÎÅ¿ÌÞ�À¿Ê�äÊÇÅÌÍ�çÐÀäè�ãÊÉÓÊÇØÔ�é×Ä�ÝÊÉÝÉÍÇÁ�ÍÎÈØ¿ÌÌÄÆ�ÙÇÍ�ÏÉÊ�ÑÄÆÎÖ¿ÅÓ�À¿ÊãÉÁÁÎÌ¿ÉÅ�ÇÅÆ�êëÝÉÍÎÊÄ�ÌÉ�¾ÇÊØÏÎÁ�êØ¿ÍÍ¿ÉÅÍ�¿Å�ÉÎÊ�ÖÉØØÎÅ¿ÌÞÔ��é×ÇÅìÍÂíÇÊÞ��íÇÊÞ�íÇÖìÄÅî¿Ä�çÝÊÉÅÉÎÅÍ�Í×ÄÂ�×ÄÊÂ�×ÄÊÍèÀÍÍ¿ÍÌÇÅÌ�ÌÉ�Ì×Ä�ÐêáÂ�ÐÉØØÎÅ¿ÌÞ�ÒÊ¿ÆÓÄÍïÚð�íÇ¿Å�ÕÌÊÄÄÌÂ�ÃÇÌÍÉÅË¿ÁÁÄÂ�ÐÀ�ðïÛñòã�ó�ôæÚÔòôôÔôôåÛ�ëàÛñ�Ð�ó�àÛòÔôÚðÔàåñô��õ�ó�ôæÚÔòôôÔôæÛà 58



���������	
����������������������������������������������������������  !"#$%�&'#()*+�*",#+#�"+�-�$.'#,#")�/�  !"#$%�0.*'*�*,*'%�1*'+�"�.-+�$.*��11�'$!"#$%�$�!"2*-+.�$.*#'�3!22�1�$*"$#-24�5!'�3- #2%��3�$*"�1'�)'- +�(*2#,*'+�*++*"$#-2�+*',#/*+6�1'�,#(*+�*7!#$-82*-//*++�$��'*+�!'/*+6�-"(�-(,�/-$*+�3�'�.*-2$.�-"(�(#)"#$%�-/'�++�*,*'%�+$-)*��3�2#3*4��

59



��������	�
������	�	������������������������������������������� �!"�#�$%#&$!"'#���&()*&!�+,-+.-,/,0�121+�3*4&2�*��'�*�#5�!%����6��'6�#7��8�� �&��)9�:;�;&��8�&<�=���#"&� ��:;;>=�#7��8�� �&��)�:#2�?&���*$ "�<<���!&��6�#7��8�� �&��)�@�ABCD�EDFG�HIJKL�EBMN�OPQP�ORSTSUVDWMCE�XYBZJ[BK�\]̂DY�@@@XYDCY_J̀�V_A_F_BK�aMWDYA_FBYaJKCJ�bYMc�bBMKCE�XYBZJ[BK�VDWJYCdDKCefghijkjlgjmk�B]̂DaJYJGF_DnD̀oFJKCĴYMĉBMKCÊJGnBA�OpqSrsUStuvwxyz{�|}xw}~xyz�����������y�{������Q��t��JYE��ĴLDKc_D��dJYEdo ẐY_�nDFGBYn�OS��t��BK�JEN�VD̂DdZDY�hfN�m�mg�h��m������t�b���BJY��B��V_YD̂CBYF��b��\Vo ẐY_�nDFGBYn��pt��BYJ��MFCJ�J��KBYJdo ẐY_�nDFGBYn�Os��Sp�t��BJY���BCD��DD�D��l�b�����DFB̀M[BK����Q�P�pSt��_nI� ���� ¡¢£¤¥¦§4̈� �� ��!�©ª4©«?¬��6�����©®��#� ��#�$"�&!��=>�?>4�&̄�!��""�#̈6�!" �&��#��#5��!5 �<�&6�$!5!&°!� �!8�� �&��$!�®̄�#"�8��6��������±²�³́µ́��¶·�̧··¹�º�»¼º½¹�¾¼¿·�¼̧�º�½·À¼́Á¿²¼̧�Â¼½�º�Ã³ÄÅ�Æ½º̧¿Ç�È²̧É·�¿Ê²À�²À�º�·Ëº²́�¾¼¿·µ�²¿�Ì²́́�̧··¹�¿¼Êº¾·�ÍÎÎÏ�Ðº½¿²É²Ðº¿²¼̧�º̧¹�ÍÎÎÏ�ºÐÐ½¼¾º́Ç�¶·�Ì²́́�̧··¹�¿Ê²À�¾¼¿·�»Ñ�¶·¹̧·À¹ºÑµ�Ò·É·Ë»·½�ÓÎµÃÔÅÇ��ÃÅ�ÀÁ»Ë²¿¿·¹�º̧�ÕËÐ́·Ë·̧¿º¿²¼̧�¼½�Ö́º̧ ²̧̧Æ�º̧¹�ÃºÐºÉ²¿Ñ�ÅÁ²́¹²̧Æ�×½º̧¿�Ö½¼Ð¼Àº́�¼̧�³Ð½²́�ÓØµÓÎÓÙµ�Â¼½�¿Ê·�Ã¼ËËÁ̧²¿Ñ�³²½�×½º̧¿À�ÚÃ³×Û�Ö½¼Æ½ºËÇ�ÜÊ·�Ð½¼Ð¼Àº́�ÀÁ»Ë²¿¿·¹�ÌºÀ�Â¼½�Ä·¹ÁÉ²̧Æ�³²½Ö¼́́Á¿²¼̧�º̧¹�ÝÞÐ¼ÀÁ½·�¿¼�±º½ËÂÁ́�ÝË²ÀÀ²¼̧À�²̧�¼Á½�É¼ËËÁ̧²¿ÑÇ��ÜÊº̧ßÀµàº½Ñ�
60



�����������	
������	��	������������������������	�������������������	������������������	� �������!����	"�##��������$%&'�(�)*�+&))+)),$�-.$%���(�.$&+)��+.,%)��/�(�)*�+&))+)*$.������	����������+����(�/���0����(�12������(�3�	���4	�(��5	�2�#������67889:;<=�>?;@ABC�B:D;C;7:C�E�<F?;D;:A�G7889:;<=�HFB?B�BDB?=�IB?C7:�FEC�<FB�7II7?<9:;<=�<79:JBECF�<FB;?�K9JJ�I7<B:<;EJL�M9?�KE8;J=�7K�<B:�I?7A?E8C�@BJ;DB?C�BCCB:<;EJ�CB?D;GBCN�I?7D;@BC�BO9;<EPJBEGGBCC�<7�?BC79?GBCN�E:@�E@D7GE<BC�K7?�FBEJ<F�E:@�@;A:;<=�EG?7CC�BDB?=�C<EAB�7K�J;KBL��

61



Community Bridges Board Resolution 
Resolution #: 2023-12-01 

RESOLUTION OF THE AUTHORIZING BOARD OF THE COMMUNITY BRIDGES APPROVING 
PARTICIPATION IN THE COMMUNITY AIR GRANTS PROGRAM 

WHEREAS Community Bridges, as Lead Applicant, submitted an Implementation or Planning and 
Capacity Building Grant Proposal on April 24, 2023, for the Community Air Grants (CAG) Program. The 
proposal submitted was for Reducing Air Pollution and Exposure to Harmful Emissions in our 
community;  

WHEREAS, the Authorizing Board of Community Bridges is eligible to receive funding through the 
Community Air Grants Program, administered by the California Air Resources Board (CARB); that focuses 
on providing support for California community-based organizations and California tribes to participate in 
the AB 617 process, and to build capacity to become active partners with government to identify, 
evaluate, and ultimately reduce air pollution and exposure to harmful emissions in their communities; 
and that is part of California Climate Investments, a statewide initiative that puts billions of Cap-and-
Trade dollars to work reducing greenhouse gas emissions, strengthening the economy, and improving 
public health and the environment—particularly in disadvantaged communities;  

WHEREAS Community Bridges will comply with the requirements stated in the CAG Grant Agreement; 
will accept the CAG funds from CARB; and will allocate and authorize the amount of $100,000 that 
Community Bridges has committed as part of the CAG proposal to be used as resource contributions for 
the project; 

WHEREAS Community Bridges will work with CARB to amend the CAG Grant Agreement when and as 
necessary;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Authorizing Board of Community Bridges, that Ray Cancino, 
Chief Executive Officer, or designee, may execute the approval of CAG funds and potential future grant 
amendments; that Community Bridges shall comply with CAG requirements; and that Community 
Bridges shall provide committed resource contributions to the project.  

The foregoing resolution was passed by the Board of Directors this 23 day of December, 2023. 

 Yes: 10 No: 0   Abstain: 0 

__________________________ __________________________    
Jack Jacobson, Chair   Sara Seigel, Secretary  

62



AGENCY BOARD RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION #      2024-01-01 

At the duly noticed regular meeting of the Community Bridges Board of Directors held on 17 January 

2024 the following resolution was made:  

Be it resolved that the Board of Directors of Community Bridges hereby authorize Community 

Bridges to make the following changes to its accounts at the financial institutions described:  

1. Non Profit Membership Savings Account ‘Coin Drive’

Bay Federal Credit Union Acct #30328498

Keep as Signers: Raymon Cancino, Douglas Underhill
Remove as Signers: Lisa Berkowitz, Alma Molina, Susan Marinshaw

Add as Signers: Darren Daley, Michele Miller, Anna Vaage

Be it also resolved that the Board of Directors of Community Bridges hereby verify that Meals on 

Wheels of Santa Cruz County utilizes Community Bridges’ Tax ID number 94-2460211.  

_______________________    Sara Siegel, Secretary 

VERIFICATION 

Each of the undersigned declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 

that the statements in the foregoing certificate are true and correct of his or her own knowledge, and 
that this declaration was executed on January 17, 2024, in Santa Cruz, California.  

_______________________    Sara Siegel, Secretary 

63



WHY CACFP?

1,687,587 Meals and snacks served through our
DCH Providers and Centers in the Tri-County
426 DCH providers in the Tri-County
3,977 Children participate
$3,559,785 invested in child nutrition

#
Here

IMPACT

CACFP IS UNIQUE BECAUSE....

Meal Reimbursement
Annual Trainings
Home Visits
Technical assistance 
Nutrition Education

We are currently the only CACFP sponsor that serves the
Tri-County area

CACFP SERVICES

WHO WE SERVE

Your
Department 

Logo 
Here 

Through meal reimbursements, we
put roughly 4 million back into our
local communities

DCH Providers
         -290 Spanish Speaking
         -136 English Speaking

Children and Child Care Centers
Adult Care Center       
Community Bridges Programs

4 Child care centers
1 Adult daycare
1 kitchen

Annual Budget: 4,274,476
Number of Staff: 6
City: Tri-County
Santa Cruz, San Benito,
& Monterey 

We get to see the money used to fund CACFP in action. Three times a year we visit CACFP participants
and visually see the impact of the meals provided.  We often see colorful plates of food served to
happy children gathered around the table in their daycare home or child care center. 

64



Questions

Keys to Sustainability

 CACFP TRENDS

Advocacy and Electeds

 
Low increases to administrative reimbursement from the CDSS has
made it difficult to have competitive wages
The cost of food has increased

Child Nutrition Reauthorization Act
Local Funding 
Sign up for the National CACFP Association
E-news letter to stay up to date with
advocacy opportunities

Biggest Threat
Describe the 

Daycare closures leads to decrease in
participation. This affects funding for

the CACFP to stay open.  
to your program here.

HOW BOARD MEMBERS CAN HELP!

Writing a letter of opinion
Set up a meeting with the local elected
Recruit and refer child care providers

Continuous recruitment for the CACFP and
additional local funding/diversification

65



Fiscal Year July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total

Current 

Year 23/24
$59,425 $58,835 $27,788 $60,344 $154,259 $288,047 $648,698

Previous 

Year 22/23
$59,580 $50,601 $19,066 $66,083 $102,245 $232,881 $51,859 $36,667 $128,208 $57,162 $115,605 $37,957 $957,915

Year over year difference:  12/31/22 to 12/31/23 $118,242 60.5% change

A. Cumulative YTD Donations
$648,698 69% Portion of goal met

$530,456     60% Change over prior year

$940,100 50% Portion of year lapsed

A. Appeals & Events

•  Year-End donations increased by $107K (32%) over prior year.

•  Major Gifts $5K+ has increased by 55% over prior year to date.

•  MOW Fall mailer has exceeded goal of $150K, raising $154K.

•  22/23 Donations YTD

Development Progress Report

   Fiscal Year 2023-24

December 31, 2023

•  23/24 Donations YTD

Donation Revenue (Excluding Grants)

T
o

ta
l

•  23/24 Donation Goal

FY 23/24
$648,698

FY 22/23
$530,456

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

66



Donations to Programs 23/24 Goal 23/24 YTD % Goal Met 22/23 Final

CB General Funds $342,400 $250,815 73% $324,972

Child and Adult Care Food Program $5,600 $4,920 88% $5,705

Early Education Division $6,000 $3,564 59% $3,700

Women, Infants & Children $3,500 $6,785 194% $1,545
Elderday $9,000 $14,929 166% $6,180

Lift Line $19,000 $5,350 28% $6,930

Meals on Wheels $435,000 $272,910 63% $461,560
La Manzana Community Resources $5,000 $45,286 906% $28,437

Live Oak Community Resources $29,000 $2,865 10% $53,403

Mountain Community Resources $76,600 $38,048 50% $57,041

Nueva Vista Community Resources $9,000 $3,225 36% $8,441

Total Program Revenue $940,100 $648,698 69% $957,915

Fundraising Appeals & Campaigns 23/24 Goals 23/24 YTD 22/23 YTD
 23/24 $ 

change 

CB Annual Report $6,500 $2,930 $150 $2,780

CB Fall Mailer $5,000 $13,717 n/a $13,717

CB Farm to Fork Gala $60,000 $47,938 $59,358 ($11,420)

General Donations $258,100 $94,382 $81,593 $12,789

Giving Tuesday $22,100 $22,109 $16,611 $5,498

Major Gifts $5,000+ $220,200 $203,500 $131,316 $72,184

MCR Mountain Affair $25,000 $15,890 $20,378 ($4,488)

Monthly Donations $25,000 $21,163 $14,500 $6,663

MOW Client Contributions $8,000 $1,610 $575 $1,035

MOW Fall Mailer $150,000 $154,080 $150,600 $3,480

MOW Spring Mailer $65,000 $8,788 $7,443 $1,345

Outside Fundraisers $0 $24,559 $37,270 ($12,711)

Payroll Contributions $25,000 $11,833 $10,662 $1,171

Upcoming Activities $70,200 tbd tbd $0

Disaster Relief Funds $0 $26,199 $0 $26,199

Total Campaign Revenue $940,100 $648,698 $530,456 $118,242

Fundraising Campaign Report
Through December 31, 2023

67



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
Program Budget Summary  

November 30, 2023   
Projections for Year Ending 6-30-2024   

A B C D E F G H I J K L
Annual   (E-D) (B+G)

6/30/23 23/24 Current Current As Yet Net Goal 25% Change % 14.53%
Unaudited Approved Projected Projected Unsecured 2023-2024 Cumulative Reserve from Change Gen'l &

PROGRAM NAME: Balance Budget Expenses Revenues Revenues Gain/Loss Gain/Loss % Prior Mo Adm Exp
WIC   (CB FY) 206,645          2,981,804         2,912,617 3,019,093 0 106,476          313,121          10.8% 106,153       3.6% 422,047         
Early Education Division 445,968          3,145,860         3,217,533 3,188,035 240,015 (29,498)           416,470          13.0% 3,497            0.1% 446,277
Elderday (387,752)         2,717,625         2,532,422 2,141,587 360,000 (390,835)         (778,587)         -30.8% (141,701)     -5.6% 359,607
Meals on Wheels 1,578,929      2,837,314         2,966,096 2,764,897 417,396 (201,199)         1,377,730      48.1% (84,217)        -2.8% 389,285
Lift Line (57,965)           3,207,421         3,283,154 3,242,442 360,000 (40,712)           (98,677)           -3.4% (37,295)        -1.1% 377,326
La Manzana Commty Res 353,246          1,174,202         1,606,329 1,561,757 181,588 (44,572)           308,674          19.4% (28,857)        -1.8% 182,480
Mountain Commty Res 384,197          706,070            742,020 793,867 127,404 51,847             436,044          59.6% 14,203         1.9% 83,388
Nueva Vista Commty Res 334,752          508,463            522,335 522,198 84,271 (137)                 334,615          64.6% 6,099            1.2% 75,989
Live Oak Commty Res 200,863          540,525            573,486 536,098 119,677 (37,388)           163,475          28.5% 941               0.2% 84,563
CACFP   (CB FY) 77,774            4,274,476         4,126,423 4,157,324 96,000 30,901             108,675          10.5% 18,705         0.5% 69,091
Administration 171,423          2,552,645         2,561,883         2,623,119 255,265 61,236             232,659          9.1% 34,061         1.3% 7,265
Philanthropy 487,444          392,400            415,312 381,515 284,412 (33,797)           453,647          109.2% (24,802)        -6.0% 60,522
TOTAL PROG OPERATIONS 3,795,524    25,038,805    25,459,610    24,931,932   2,526,028    (527,678)       3,267,846    15.54% (133,213)    -0.5% 2,557,840
LOCR-Capital Campaign 479,649          26,500 4,234 0 (22,267)           457,383          NA 41,964         0
CBHQ FY 23/24 Activity -                      109,153            119,213 0 10,060             10,060            NA 9,479            0
501 Main Street 838,685          1,733,245         894,560 0 (838,685)         -                    NA (107,962)     15,279
Fixed Assets & Gen'l Agy 8,579,657      -                      1,780 16,301 0 14,521             8,594,178      NA 28,367         0

TOTAL AGENCY 13,693,515  25,038,805    27,330,288    25,966,240   2,526,028    (1,364,048)   12,329,467  15.54% (161,365)    -0.6% 2,573,119   

                  Fixed Asset purchases and Pass-Thru expenses exempt from Indirect; Revenues and Expenses include all pass-through
                 *364K of Prior Year Funds were in approved BOD budget for programs: 135K ELD, 16K LOCR, 213K MOW
                 *Below the line 501 Main expenditures will turn into capitalized fixed assets and will affect -Cash-Flow / +Net assets in terms of nuetral financial gain/loss

68



Program Budget Summary
November 30, 2023

PROGRAM NAME:

WIC Projected gain is from ECM revenues, expenses going to PATH grant and new CCAH grant for 61K
Early Education Division +41,145 in CDE funding, HP projecting -34K (loss), toddler teacher just hired
Elderday -12K personnel exp, -8K utilities exp, -25K CCAH ADHC Rev, -47K CCAH ECM Rev
Meals on Wheels +25K food, +18K personnel, +15K professional services, +5K media
Lift Line +24K personnel, + 6K professional services
La Manzana CR +28K personnel, increased direct aid payments, +35K CF Monterey, +5K Dudley Volmeyer
MCR -25.3K personnel (vacancies) minimal other changes
Nueva Vista CR -6K personnel (operations mgr), minimal other changes
Live Oak CR decrease personnel -11K
CACFP Projecting gain on unspent state reimbursement
Administration +21K Indirect, -23K personnel (grants analyst), +10K other expenses
Philanthropy 40K+ contract expenses for ballot measure, donations increasing through holidays

LOCR-Cap Campaign Actual YTD less proj FY 23/24 expenses, 11/30/2023 $483,882.50
La Manzana Property Actual Revenue/Expense through 11/30/2023
501 Main Street Amount to completion - proj reserve + rev + loan = proj expenses
FAs & Agy Unrestr. Actual YTD less projected FY 23/24 expenses, Endowment Balance 11/30/2023 $734,580
Total Agency Total Programs -527K, BOD aproved budget -364K

69


	https://us02web.zoom.us/j/613973795
	Meeting ID: 613 973 795
	REGULAR SESSION DRAFT AGENDA
	11.15.23 BOD Regular Session Draft Minutes.pdf
	https://us02web.zoom.us/j/613973795, Meeting ID: 613 973 795
	REGULAR SESSION DRAFT MINUTES
	Present: Jack Jacobson, Tony Nunez, Michele Miller, Ray Cancino, Mary McMillan, Michael Babich, Silvia Morales, Aloke Mukherjee, Darren Daley, Steph Ruhl, Lisa Hindman Holbert, Mayra Melendrez, Dana Wagner
	Minutes: Mary Mackenzie

	uf-grants-resolution-11-15-21 - Signed.pdf
	RESOLUTION

	Program Budget Summary 11.23 pg1.pdf
	Nov 23

	Program Budget Summary 11.23 pg2.pdf
	Nov 23




